
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Page 1 of 6


Requestor(s) Department Account Project Description Fund Category Funding Source 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Christen City Clerk 410-51440-50810-24021 Four (4) additional Badger Books 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 8,224$              
Ehlinger EMS 603-52310-50880 Ambulance purchase (R-39-2023 chassis delayed until 2024) 603 - EMS Expenditure User fees 300,000$         
Ehlinger EMS 603-52310-43799 Ambulance purchase (R-39-2023 chassis delayed until 2024) 603 - EMS Revenue Capital Grant (115,270)$        
Ehlinger EMS 603-52310-43310 Ambulance purchase (R-39-2023 chassis delayed until 2024) 603 - EMS Revenue ARPA funds (184,730)$        
Ehlinger Finance BS&A Software Cloud upgrade 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 130,000$         
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24022 PPE Purchase/Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 65,910$           63,500$           63,500$           65,000$         65,000$         
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24023 Computers/MDC Install/Swapout 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 17,000$           13,000$           13,000$           13,000$         13,000$         
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24024 Thermal Imaging Cameras 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 30,000$           
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24025 Tactical Vests/Helmets-FD Rescue Teams 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 25,000$           25,000$           
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24086 Training Room Tables 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero 25,000$           
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24026 Station PA System Update 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 15,000$           
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24027 RDC - Water Rescue Boat 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 6,000$              
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24028 Air Line Installation in FD 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 20,000$           
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24029 Water Filter System for washing trucks 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 50,000$           
Ripp Fire 410-52200-50810-24089 Emergency Siren - Nordic Ridge / Kettle Park West 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 45,000$           
Ripp Fire Mezzanine in Fire Station (moved to 2025 at 8/10/23 meeting) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      Zero 150,000$       
Ripp Fire Fire Engine Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 950,000$         
Ripp Fire Electric/Battery Rescue tools 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 55,000$           
Ripp Fire 2012 Ram 1500 Truck Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 80,000$           
Ripp Fire Ladder Truck - New 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 1,900,000$    -$                    
Ripp Fire Additional Facility (Training/Station) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue TBD
Montgomery IT/Media 410-55500-50810-24030 Computer Replacements 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 30,000$           30,000$           30,000$           30,000$         30,000$         
Montgomery IT/Media 410-55500-50810-24031 Network Upgrades 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 25,000$           25,000$           25,000$           25,000$         25,000$         
Montgomery IT/Media 410-55500-50810-24032 2019 Camera Replacements 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 24,000$           
Montgomery IT/Media 410-55500-50810-24033 TV/Web Closed Captioning (Est. 10 Years) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 12,000$           
Montgomery IT/Media 410-55500-50810-24034 Tripod Replacements (2019 Tripods) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 12,000$           
Montgomery IT/Media 410-55500-50810-24035 4-Camera Wireless Video System 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 8,000$              
Montgomery IT/Media Host & SAN Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 100,000$         
Montgomery IT/Media 2021 Camera Replace 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 24,000$         
Montgomery IT/Media Remote Production Tricaster Replace 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 40,000$         
Montgomery IT/Media Drone Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 2,500$           
Montgomery IT/Media Van Graphics Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 5,000$           
Montgomery IT/Media Control Room Tricaster Replace 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 40,000$         
Ramsey Library 410-55110-50810-24036 Computers & Peripherals 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 7,000$              7,000$              7,000$              7,000$           7,000$           
Ramsey Library 410-55110-50810-24037 Furniture & Fixtures 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 3,000$              3,000$              3,000$              3,000$           3,000$           
Ramsey Library 410-55110-50810-24038 Self-check-out machine replacements 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 17,500$           
Brehm Planning  Stage Refinishing 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 25,000$           
Scheel Planning  410-56300-50880-24039 Replace 2005 Chev. Pickup Truck with Ford F-150 Extended Cab Pickup Truck 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 50,000$           
Scheel Planning  Comprehensive Plan - Major Update w/ Survey Work 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 100,000$         
Scheel Planning  Zoning Code & Subdivision/Platting Ordinance Update to implement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 50,000$           
Scheel Planning  EMS - Roof Top Unit #3 - Serves Kitchen, Living and Work Area 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 35,000$           


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028 v11







Page 2 of 6


Requestor(s) Department Account Project Description Fund Category Funding Source 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028 v11


Scheel Planning  410-52200-50810-24040
Fire Department Fire Alarm Panel Replacement - Update to new standard and fix 
failing unit 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 40,000$           


Scheel Planning  410-55110-50830-24041
Library - HVAC Air Handler and Equipment Replacement - Evaluation is underway 
by consultant with updated estimated to be provided as their work continues 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 500,000$         


Scheel Planning  410-55110-50830-24042


Library - Tuckpoint exterior; due to underestimating, $60,000 was budgeted in 
2023.  That amount should be rolled over and the additional funds should be 
added. 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 40,000$           


Scheel Planning  410-53200-50810-24043
Fire Alarm Panel and Sensor Replacement - Total System -- Outdated and not 
compliant any longer 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 100,000$         


Scheel Planning  Opera House - Tuckpoint exterior 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 100,000$         
Brehm Planning  410-55190-50830-24087 Opera House Window assessment (including architect) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 25,000$           
Swadley Planning  Potential Friends of the Opera House donation for window assessments 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (12,500)$          


Scheel Planning  
Opera House - Window Replacement - Should consider whether we want to make 
this large expenditure.  Not leaking water 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 250,000$         


Scheel Planning  410-52120-50830-24044


Public Safety Building - 2nd Floor West Wing HVAC Unit ($20,000 was included 
2023 CIP) Not completed in 2023.  This increase (+$20,000) replaces whole unit; 
not just internal components 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 20,000$           


Scheel Planning  410-52120-50810-24045
Generator (Serves Public Safety, Fire and part of Opera House) - Automatic 
Transfer switch controllers are aging and failing 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 15,000$           


Scheel Planning  410-54600-50810-24046
Dishwasher system and associated plumbing replacement - Failing unit and new 
plumbing standards 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 60,000$           


Scheel Planning  410-54600-50810-24047 Senior Center - Range Hood Suppression System 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 5,000$              
Ehlinger Senior Center - Prior Year grants (General Fund) Debt issue (65,000)$          (83,878)$          


Scheel Planning  
Senior Center - Roof Replacement, Main Building and Annex (Both are about the 
same size) - non-cedar shake, architectural steel 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 260,000$         


Ehlinger Senior Center - Prior Year grants (General Fund) Debt issue (83,878)$          
Scheel Planning  Senior Center - Lower Lot & Concrete spillway resurfacing 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 60,000$           
Scheel Planning  410-53200-50830-24048 Solar - EMS/Food Pantry - 50% Load Offset 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 140,000$         
Scheel Planning  Solar - Fire Department 50% Offset & 33% Offset Opera House 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 230,000$         
Scheel Planning  Solar - Senior Center 50% Offset (Total Estimate) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 140,000$         
Scheel Planning  Solar - City Hall 50% Offset (Total Estimate) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 170,000$       
Scheel Planning  Solar - Public Safety Building 50% Offset 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 230,000$       
Scheel Planning  410-53200-43315-24048 Solar - 30% investment tax credit 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (42,000)$          (69,000)$          (42,000)$          (51,000)$        (69,000)$        
Committee Planning  410-53200-50840-24049 Power House Building - Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 50,000$           
Committee Planning  410-53200-50830-24050 Power House Building - Tuck pointing 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero 65,000$           
Committee Planning  410-53200-50830-24051 Power House Building - Building repairs 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero 200,000$         
Jenks Police  First Floor PSB Remodel (deleted 8/15/2023 per Jenks) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      
Jenks Police  410-52100-50810-24052 Body and Squad Camera Replacements 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 101,000$         
Jenks Police  410-52100-50810-24053 Policy Program 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 32,000$           
Jenks Police  410-52100-50880-24054 Replace Squad 283 w K-9 kennel & heat alarm 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 60,000$           
Jenks Police  410-52100-50880-24055 Replace Squad 270 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 53,000$           







Page 3 of 6


Requestor(s) Department Account Project Description Fund Category Funding Source 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028 v11


Jenks Police  410-52100-50810-24056 2 Squad Computer Replacements  410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 8,000$              
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 271 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 55,000$           
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 273 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 55,000$           
Jenks Police  2 Squad Computer Replacements  410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 8,000$              
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 278 Detective Sedan 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 40,000$           
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 281 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 56,000$           
Jenks Police  2 Squad Computer Replacements  410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 8,000$              
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 280 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 58,000$         
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 279 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 58,000$         
Jenks Police  2 Squad Computer Replacements 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 8,500$           
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 276 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 60,000$         
Jenks Police  Replace Squad 275 Detective Van 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 45,000$         
Jenks Police  2 Squad Computer Replacements 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 9,000$           


Scheel, Jenks, Ripp, 
Schimelfenig Public Safety 410-53200-50810-24057


Space Planning Study for Police, Fire, EMS - This is a comprehensive analysis of the 
space needed for each service and to evaluate opportunities to house in joint 
facilities 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 75,000$           Zero


Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50810-24058 Asphalt Zipper 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue  $         332,000 
Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50810-24059 Smithco Diamond Groomer #59 - Changed to reconditioning in operations 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero
Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50810-24060 Tool Cat 5600 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 66,000$           
Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50880-24061 V-Box for Tandem 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 45,000$           
Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50880-24062 Truck #47 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 48,500$           
Hebert Public Works 224-53300-50880-24063 Leaf Vacuum Unit #42 224 - Storm Expenditure Debt issue 255,000$         
Hebert Public Works 224-53300-50880-24064 Trommel Screen (updated 8/18/23 per Hebert) 224 - Storm Expenditure Debt issue Zero 130,000$         
Hebert Public Works International Patrol Truck #14 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 225,000$         
Hebert Public Works Toro Wing Mower #73 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 75,000$           
Hebert Public Works Truck #1 1998 Chevy K3500 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 34,000$           
Hebert Public Works Leaf Vacuum Unit #41 224 - Storm Expenditure Debt issue 265,000$         
Hebert Public Works Patrol Truck #9 International 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 240,000$         
Hebert Public Works Patrol Truck - Addition to the Fleet 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 240,000$         
Hebert Public Works Ford F-350 Dump #52 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 59,000$           
Hebert Public Works Wacker Road Roller #30 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 25,000$           
Hebert Public Works Step Emulsion Tank 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 65,000$           
Hebert Public Works Elgin Pelican Street Sweeper #12 224 - Storm Expenditure Debt issue 300,000$         
Hebert Public Works John Deere 570A Grader #20 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 125,000$       
Hebert Public Works Tire Changer 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 9,000$           
Hebert Public Works Van #34 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 43,000$         
Hebert Public Works Patrol Truck - Addition to the Fleet? 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 260,000$       
Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50810-24065 Pedestrian Rapid Flasher Crossing (spare for replacements when needed) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 12,800$           
Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50810-24066 City Welcome Signs - Funding source changed by committee 8/28/2023 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 30,000$           30,000$           30,000$           
Hebert Public Works 410-53300-50810-24067 Sign Board LED Panel 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 9,500$              
Hebert Public Works Sign Board LED Panel 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 9,500$              







Page 4 of 6


Requestor(s) Department Account Project Description Fund Category Funding Source 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028 v11


Hebert Public Works Compost Site Material Storage 249 - Refuse Expenditure Debt issue 65,000$           
Hebert Public Works 410-55200-50810-24068 Park Amenities 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 6,000$              6,500$              6,500$              8,000$           
Hebert Public Works 410-55200-50810-24069 ADA Transition Plan 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 35,000$           40,000$           40,000$           -$                    -$                    
Hebert Public Works Bjoin Park Shelter Roof 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      10,000$           -$                      -$                    -$                    
Hebert Public Works Dunkirk Park - Playground and Court Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      110,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Hebert Public Works Picnic Table Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      12,000$           -$                      -$                    -$                    
Hebert Public Works Replacement Sunshade Cover - Troll Beach 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      3,500$              -$                      -$                    -$                    
Hebert Public Works Ball Diamond Netting Replacement (Norse and Lowell Parks) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      6,000$              -$                    -$                    
Hebert Public Works Crack Fill Sport Courts (Lowell, Veterans, Norse, and Mandt Parks) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      40,000$           -$                    -$                    
Hebert Public Works Bjoin Park - Playground Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      -$                      175,000$       -$                    
Hebert Public Works Bjoin Park - Playground Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      -$                      175,000$       -$                    
Hebert Public Works East Park - Playground and Court Replacement 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    225,000$       
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60020-50840-24070 Tee Naasak Park - Design & Engineering 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees 175,000$         -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60020-44950-24070 Tee Naasak Park impact fees 223 - Park Dev Revenue Impact fees (175,000)$        
Glynn Rec Programs Tee Naasak Park - Construction 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees -$                      925,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60030-50870-24071 51 West Park Development 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees 434,358$         473,116$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60030-44950-24071 51 West Park impact fees 223 - Park Dev Revenue Impact fees (434,358)$        
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60050-50870-24072 Magnolia Springs Park - Land Restoration 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees 40,500$           25,000$           43,000$           26,250$         26,250$         
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60050-44950-24072 Magnolia Springs impact fees 223 - Park Dev Revenue Impact fees (40,500)$          
Glynn Rec Programs Magnolia Springs Park - Land Restoration Management Plan 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    4,500$           
Glynn Rec Programs Magnolia Springs Park - Design & Engineering 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Magnolia Springs Park - Development 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees -$                      200,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60060-50810-24073 STI Development - Park Master Plan 223 - Park Dev Expenditure Impact fees 50,000$           -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 223-60060-44950-24073 STI Holdings impact fees 223 - Park Dev Revenue Impact fees (50,000)$          
Glynn Rec Programs To be determined Impact fees 223 - Park Dev Revenue Impact fees (1,623,116)$     (43,000)$          (26,250)$        (30,750)$        
Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24074 South Loop Trail - Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 60,000$           -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs South Loop Trail - Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      300,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Jefferson Street Pedestrian Bridge (no change in amount, only year) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero -$                      -$                    500,000$       
Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50870-24075 Division Street Park Shoreline Grow-in Program 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 2,500$              -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24088 Racetrack Park - Design work 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 60,000$           -$                      -$                      
Glynn Rec Programs Racetrack Park - Phase 1 master plan engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 200,000$         110,000$         
Glynn Rec Programs Racetrack Park- Phase 1 construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 3,650,000$      
Glynn Rec Programs Racetrack Park - House demolition, capping well 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero Zero


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24076
Racetrack Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Engineering (Parking, Trails, 
and Signage) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24077
Racetrack Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Engineering (Ballfield 
Improvements) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24078
Racetrack Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Engineering (South 
Expansion) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue Zero -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs
Racetrack Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Engineering (Parking, Trails, 
and Signage) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      Zero -$                    -$                    







Page 5 of 6


Requestor(s) Department Account Project Description Fund Category Funding Source 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028 v11


Glynn Rec Programs
Racetrack Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Engineering (Ballfield 
Improvements) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      Zero -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs
Racetrack Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Engineering (South 
Expansion) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      Zero -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24079 Mandt Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 275,000$         100,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50870-24080 Mandt Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 2,431,000$      1,069,000$      -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-43524-24080
Mandt Park - Phase I Master Plan Implementation Construction - DNR 
stewardship grant 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (250,000)$        -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn NEW GRANT FUNDING FOR MANDT PARK (111,208)$        
Glynn Rec Programs Schefelker Park - Restroom Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      30,000$           -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Schefelker Park - Restroom Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      160,000$         -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Veterans Park - Restroom Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      30,000$           -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Veterans Park - Restroom Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      160,000$         -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Norse Park - Shelter Replacement Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      150,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Norse Park - Shelter Replacement Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      650,000$         -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Yahara River Trail Paving 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      225,000$         -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Yahara River Trail Paving- Dane County grant 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue -$                      -$                      (100,000)$        -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Settler's Point Trail - Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      125,000$         -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Settler's Point Trail - Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    650,000$       
Glynn Rec Programs Highway 51 Underpass 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      1,624,000$      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs North Loop Trail (STI Development to Lincoln Ave) - Engineering 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      60,000$           -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs North Loop Trail (STI Development to Lincoln Ave) - Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      -$                      -$                      350,000$       -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24081 River Development Phase II - River Park Engineering (from 2023 CIP) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 190,000$         150,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50870-24081 River Development Phase II - Whitewater Park Construction (from 2023 CIP) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 1,215,000$      1,215,000$      -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-43524-24082
River Development Phase II - Whitewater Park Construction - Land & Water 
Conservation Fund grant (from 2023 CIP) 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (490,000)$        (490,000)$        -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50870-24083 River Development Phase II - River Restoration (from 2023 CIP) 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 385,000$         -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-43524-24083
River Development Phase II - River Restoration - DNR flood control grant (from 
2023 CIP) 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (225,000)$        -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50870-24084 River Development Phase II - Trail underpass & pedestrian areas construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 1,400,000$      1,400,000$      -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-43524-24084
River Development Phase II - Trail underpass & pedestrian areas construction - 
DNR stewardship grant 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (120,000)$        (120,000)$        -$                      -$                    -$                    


Glynn Rec Programs 410-55300-50840-24085 Ridge St to Cooper's Causeway Trail Design 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 25,000$           -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    
Glynn Rec Programs Ridge St to Cooper's Causeway Trail Construction 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue -$                      120,000$         -$                      -$                    -$                    
McGlynn Senior Center Parking lot expansion 410 - Cap Outlay Expenditure Debt issue 200,000$         300,000$       
McGlynn Senior Center Parking lot expansion - Donations 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (50,000)$          
McGlynn Senior Center Parking lot expansion - Senior Center Special Fund - fund balance 410 - Cap Outlay Revenue Debt issue (150,000)$        


Grand Totals 223 Park Dev -$                                    7,723,434$      7,091,036$      8,539,000$      3,238,000$    2,548,000$    
224 Storm 255,000$                       


Construction 410 Outlay 7,468,434$                   5,321,222        4,009,362        4,605,714        3,381,095      2,813,872      







Page 6 of 6


Requestor(s) Department Account Project Description Fund Category Funding Source 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028 v11


Grand Total 603 EMS -$                                    13,044,656$    11,100,398$    13,144,714$    6,619,095$    5,361,872$    
Total 7,723,434$                   


Former totals 17,113,475      13,316,981      8,927,494        6,699,095      4,491,872      
Increase (decrease) (4,068,819)       (2,216,583)       4,217,220        (80,000)          870,000         


Mayor Previous Increase
Proposed (Decrease)


W 2024 13,044,656$    17,113,475      (4,068,819)$     
2025 11,100,398$    13,316,981      (2,216,583)$     
2026 13,144,714$    8,927,494        4,217,220$      
2027 6,619,095$      6,699,095        (80,000)$          
2028 5,361,872$      4,491,872        870,000$         
Total 49,270,735$    50,548,917$    (1,278,182)$     








Page 1 of 5


Requestor(s) Department Account Funding Source(s) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24001 W. South             Page to Van Buren Reconstruction 778,206       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24002 Nygaard Jackson to Buckingham Pulverize Zero 354,651       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24003 Johnson Roby to Eisenhower Pulverize 216,106       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24004 Johnson Eisenhower  to Page Pulverize 307,192       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24005 Wilson Van Buren to Lincoln Pulverize Zero 171,910       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24006 Grieg Trail Lincoln to N. Van Buren Pulverize 238,704       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24007 *Fourth St             Main to Bridge Reconstruct 744,058       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24008 *East South Fourth to  W.of Eighth St Reconstruct 751,461       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24009 *Fifth East South to Jefferson Reconstruct 175,261       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24001 W. South             Page to Van Buren 106,119       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24002 Nygaard Jackson to Buckingham Zero 22,569         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24003 Johnson Roby to Eisenhower 13,752         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24004 Johnson Eisenhower  to Page 19,549         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24005 Wilson Van Buren to Lincoln Zero 10,940         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24006 Grieg Trail Lincoln to N. Van Buren 13,924         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24007 *Fourth St             Main to Bridge 101,462       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24008 *East South Fourth to  W.of Eighth St 102,472       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24009 *Fifth East South to Jefferson 23,899         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50820-24001 W. South             Page to Van Buren Reconstruction 151,635       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50820-24006 Grieg Trail Lincoln to N. Van Buren Pulverize 82,610         


Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50820-24007 *Fourth St             Main to Bridge Reconstruct 199,458       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50820-24008 *East South Fourth to  W.of Eighth St Reconstruct 237,609       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50840-24001 W. South             Page to Van Buren 20,678         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50840-24006 Grieg Trail Lincoln to N. Van Buren 5,257           
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50840-24007 *Fourth St             Main to Bridge 27,199         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50840-24008 *East South Fourth to  W.of Eighth St 32,401         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50810-24010 Phase 2 Phase 2  Install Storm Water 97,900         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50840-24010 Phase 2 Phase 2  Engineering Storm Water 13,350         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53600-50810-24011 Hydrodynamic Separator South of Wagon Works Way Construction Storm Water 338,000       


Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53600-50840-24011


Hydrodynamic Separator - 
Additional Engineering -$60,000 
was in 2023 Budget and needs to 
be rolled over if not all spent


South of Wagon Works Way Engineering Storm Water


12,000         


Scheel Planning 224-53600-43791-24011
Hydrodynamic Separator - Dane 
County Grant Funding South of Wagon Works Way Grant Grant (189,500)      


Scheel Planning 224-53600-43524-24011
Hydrodynamic Separator - 
WDNR UNPS Grant South of Wagon Works Way Grant Grant


(138,000)      


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028                              
Streets and Storm Water Construction v11


Project Description


Engineering 


Storm Water


General Obligation


General Obligation


Engineering Storm Water







Page 2 of 5


Requestor(s) Department Account Funding Source(s) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028                              
Streets and Storm Water Construction v11


Project Description


Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53600-50840-24012
Stormwater Quality Management 
Plan


Total is $122,000 - DNR Grant for 
$61,000 Engineering Storm Water 122,000       


Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53600-43524-24012
Stormwater Quality Management 
Plan


Total is $122,000 - DNR Grant for 
$61,000 Grant Grant (61,000)        


Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24013 Asphalt Overlay Program See Overlay Plan Asphalt Overlay General Obligation 170,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50820-24014 Preventive Maintenance City Wide Crack Fill, Etc. General Obligation 130,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24015 Fourth St    - Engineering         Milwaukee to Isham Engineering General Obligation 191,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24016 Engineering DOT - Fifth St to Chalet (Spring Rd) Engineering General Obligation 25,000         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50835-24017 Sidewalk Program City Wide Sidewalk Replacement General Obligation 100,000       
Ehlinger Public Works/Planning 400-53300-49226 Sidewalk Program City Wide Sidewalk Replacement Special Assessment (50,000)        
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 400-53300-50840-24018 2025 Project Engineering See 2025 CIP Engineering General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 224-53300-50840-24019 2029 Project Engineering See 2029 CIP Engineering Storm Water 20,000         
Ehlinger Public Works/Planning Engineering Tech position Engineering General Obligation 91,460         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Fourth St             Milwaukee St to Isham Reconstruct  General Obligation 1,387,680    
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Fourth St             Milwaukee St to Isham Reconstruct  BIL grant (834,469)      
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Lincoln Hwy B to Kreidemen Pulverize 811,113       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Lincoln to Norse Parkway Pulverize 395,175       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Norse Parkway to Page Pulverize 424,890       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Fourth St             Milwaukee St to Isham Engineering General Obligation 192,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Lincoln Hwy B to Kreidemen 51,616         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Lincoln to Norse Parkway 25,148         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Norse Parkway to Page 24,785         


Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Fourth St             Milwaukee St to Isham Reconstruct  181,590       


Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Lincoln Hwy B to Kreidemen Pulverize 125,950       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Lincoln to Norse Parkway Pulverize 125,950       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Norse Parkway to Page Pulverize 75,570         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Fourth St             Milwaukee St to Isham 11,683         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Lincoln Hwy B to Kreidemen 17,175         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Lincoln to Norse Parkway 17,175         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Kriedemen Norse Parkway to Page 10,305         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning DOT Hwy 51 Majors Project Fifth St to Spring Rd DOT Reconstruct General Obligation 253,176       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Sidewalk Program City Wide Replacement General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Asphalt Overlay Program See Overlay Plan Asphalt Overlay General Obligation 170,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Preventive Maintenance City Wide Crack Fill, Etc. General Obligation 140,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2026 Project Engineering See 2026 CIP Engineering General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2029 Project Engineering See 2029 CIP Engineering Storm Water 20,000         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning DOT Hwy 51 Majors Project Harrison to Roby Reconstruct


 Confirm Storm Water Costs at is 
pertains to BIL Funding 


Storm Water


Storm Water


Engineering 


Engineering 


General Obligation


General Obligation







Page 3 of 5


Requestor(s) Department Account Funding Source(s) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028                              
Streets and Storm Water Construction v11


Project Description
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning DOT Hwy 51 Majors Project Roby to CTH B (Seg 4) Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning *Racetrack Rd Hwy 51 to Hwy A Reconstruction
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Taft  St                             Page to Wilson Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Wilson                    Page to Taft Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Harding/Grant        Page to Wilson Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Sherman Wilson to Harding Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning *Racetrack Rd Hwy 51 to Hwy A
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Taft  St                             Page to Wilson
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Wilson                    Page to Taft
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Harding/Grant        Page to Wilson
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Sherman Wilson to Harding
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning *Racetrack Rd Hwy 51 to Hwy A Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Wilson                    Page to Taft Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Harding/Grant        Page to Wilson Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning *Racetrack Rd Hwy 51 to Hwy A
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Wilson                    Page to Taft
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Harding/Grant        Page to Wilson
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Sidewalk Program City Wide Replacement General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Asphalt Overlay Program See Overlay Plan Asphalt Overlay General Obligation 195,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Preventive Maintenance City Wide Crack Fill, Etc. General Obligation 160,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2027 Project Engineering See 2027 CIP Engineering General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2029 Project Engineering See 2029 CIP Engineering Storm Water 20,000         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning DOT Majors Project Van Buren to Fifth St Reconstruction
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Greig Trail to Kriedemen Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Kriedemen to Roby Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning W. Main Hwy 51 to King St Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Nottingham Kings Lynn to Jackson Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Buckingham Kings Lynn to Devonshire Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Erin Hill Buckingham to Termini Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Tara Ln Buckingham to Termini Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Homme Ln Nottingham to Buckingham Pulverize 
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning North St Forrest to Division Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Forrest St Washington to Dead End Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Greig Trail to Kriedemen
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Kriedemen to Roby
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning W. Main Hwy 51 to King St
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Nottingham Kings Lynn to Jackson


General Obligation


General Obligation


Engineering Storm Water


Storm Water


Engineering General Obligation


3,205,237    


228,848       


193,080       


26,329         


2,507,306    







Page 4 of 5


Requestor(s) Department Account Funding Source(s) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028                              
Streets and Storm Water Construction v11


Project Description
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Buckingham Kings Lynn to Devonshire
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Erin Hill Buckingham to Termini
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Tara Ln Buckingham to Termini
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Homme Ln Nottingham to Buckingham
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning North St Forrest to Division
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Forrest St Washington to Dead End
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Greig Trail to Kriedemen Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Kriedemen to Roby Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning W. Main Hwy 51 to King St Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning North St Forrest to Division Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Greig Trail to Kriedemen
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Van Buren Kriedemen to Roby
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning W. Main Hwy 51 to King St
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning North St Forrest to Division
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Sidewalk Program City Wide Replacement General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Asphalt Overlay Program See Overlay Plan Asphalt Overlay General Obligation 195,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Preventive Maintenance City Wide Crack Fill, Etc. General Obligation 160,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2028 Project Engineering See 2028 CIP Engineering General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2029 Project Engineering See 2029 CIP Engineering Storm Water 20,000         
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Madison St      Harding to Jackson Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Roy St                              Johnson to Madison Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning McKinley St             Madison to Page Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Taft St             Prairie to Page Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Prairie St                           Wilson to McKinley Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Prairie St                           Main to Prospect Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Gjertson Main to Termini Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Nora W. Main to W. South Pulverize
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Madison St      Harding to Jackson
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Roy St                              Johnson to Madison
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning McKinley St             Madison to Page
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Taft St             Prairie to Page
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Prairie St                           Wilson to McKinley
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Prairie St                           Main to Prospect
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Gjertson Main to Termini
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Nora W. Main to W. South
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Madison St      Harding to Jackson Reconstruct
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Prairie St                           Main to Prospect Reconstruct


Engineering General Obligation 143,647       


145,860       


9,282           Engineering 


Storm Water


Storm Water


Engineering 


General Obligation


General Obligation


Storm Water


1,781,168    


183,079       


206,470       







Page 5 of 5


Requestor(s) Department Account Funding Source(s) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


City of Stoughton - Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) - Budget Years 2024-2028                              
Streets and Storm Water Construction v11


Project Description
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Madison St      Harding to Jackson
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Prairie St                           Main to Prospect
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Sidewalk Program City Wide Replacement General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Asphalt Overlay Program See Overlay Plan Asphalt Overlay General Obligation 195,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning Preventive Maintenance City Wide Crack Fill, Etc. General Obligation 200,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2029 Project Engineering See 2029 CIP Engineering General Obligation 100,000       
Hebert/Scheel Public Works/Planning 2029 Project Engineering See 2029 CIP Engineering Storm Water 20,000         


Grand Total Totals 5,321,222 4,009,362 4,605,714 3,381,095 2,813,872


Total expenditures 224 Storm Sewer 1,360,097 Planning 83,500
Grant revenue 224 Storm Sewer (388,500) Streets 888,097
Bond issue 224 Storm Sewer 971,597 Total 971,597


Total expenditures 400 Construction 4,399,625 Wages 91,460
Transfer In - Special assess 400 Construction (50,000) All other 4,308,165
Bond issue 400 Construction 4,349,625 Total 4,399,625


Total bond issue 5,321,222
Less detail above (5,321,222)
Variance 0


Engineering Storm Water
28,155         








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Enroll City of Stoughton in Choose Renewable Program 


Committee 
Action: 


Mayor included in the proposed 2024 budget


Fiscal Impact:   Tax levy activities $6,214 
Non-levy activities (Storm Sewer & EMS) $337 


File Number: R-172-2023 Date 11/07/23 
044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, members of the City of Stoughton Sustainability inquired whether the City 
of Stoughton was enrolled in Stoughton Utilities Choose Renewables Program; and, 


WHEREAS, there was discussion several years ago about enrolling in the program but no 
Common Council action was taken to enroll in the program; and, 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities prepared the attached document in January 2023 
estimating the annual City cost for enrollment in Choose Renewables would be $6,552; and, 


WHEREAS, the Mayor included the above amount in the proposed 2024 budget; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton that the City of Stoughton shall be enrolled in the Choose Renewals Program effective 
with the first available date as determined by Stoughton Utilities. 


Council Action:         Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:        Accept    Veto  


Mayor Tim Swadley Date 


Council Action:         Override Vote 







Property Address 2020 2021 2022 3 Year Avg Total Blocks Monthly Cost


381 E Main Opera House 6577 7493 5893 6654 22 22.00$             


421 S Page St Mill Pond Park 38 27 25 30 0 -$                 


381 E Main St 4370 4443 4357 4390 15 30.00$             


321 S 4th St PSB 19467 20047 18073 19196 64 64.00$             


567 E Main St 3599 3359 3371 3443 11 23.00$             


401 E Main St Fire Dept 12551 11980 10537 11689 39 39.00$             


Main & 4th Signal / Lights 1431 679 695 935 3 6.00$               


Nottingham Rd Lift 396 214 269 293 1 2.00$               


304 S 4th St 11151 12734 13842 12576 42 42.00$             


324 S 6th St Rotary Park 36 65 89 63 0 -$                 
1300 Hoel Ave Nordic Ridge
*Account has solar - only calculted on 


purchased usage 208 240 340 263 1 2.00$               


Police Pole Cameras 63 70 77 70 0 -$                 
1900 Meadow Dr
*2020 was a partial year 1066 1030 966 1021 3 7.00$               


Main & Division Signal / Lights 576 312 323 404 1 3.00$               
Hwy 51 & Roby Rd Lighting
*No data for 2020 - 2022


207 S Forrest St 4417 4293 5083 4598 15 31.00$             


207 S Forrest St 5437 6160 6113 5903 20 39.00$             


532 E Main St Depot 1137 921 831 963 3 6.00$               


Page & Main Signal / Lighting 1843 837 785 1155 4 8.00$               


248 W Main St #1 0 460 341 267 1 2.00$               


248 W Main St #2 908 780 1389 1026 3 7.00$               
248 W Main St #3
*2021 was a partial year 0 292 300 197 1 1.00$               
248 W Main St #4
*2022 was a partial year 0 0 362 121 0 1.00$               


248 W Main Senior Center 9543 9199 11193 9978 33 33.00$             


520 S 4th St Food Pantry 977 967 1066 1003 3 7.00$               


516 S 4th St EMS 8411 8830 7819 8353 28 28.00$             


E US Hwy 51 Sign 5 5 5 5 0 -$                 


225 Lynn St Eastside Park 116 130 120 122 0 1.00$               


Monthly Averages


City of Stoughton 


Choose Renewable


Choose Renewable Estimates







Property Address 2020 2021 2022 3 Year Avg Total Blocks Monthly Cost


Mand Park Outlet 101 108 72 94 0 1.00$               


400 Mandt Park Grandstand 10 177 163 117 0 1.00$               


400 Mandt Park Diamonds 40 416 683 380 1 3.00$               


Mandt Park Picnic Shelter 3 2 5 3 0 -$                 


401 Mant Park Pool 141 506 569 405 1 3.00$               


S 4th St Dam 91 90 89 90 0 1.00$               


Van Buren & Main Signal 274 308 277 286 1 2.00$               


S Page St Cemetery 136 168 70 125 0 1.00$               


Berry St   Street Light 30984 25221 26384 27530 92 92.00$             


US Hwy 51 & Kings Lynn Signal 340 348 335 341 1 2.00$               


630 Kriedeman Dr Norse Park 115 271 806 397 1 3.00$               


127 Wilson St Bjoin Park 14 15 128 52 0 -$                 


1901 Roby Rd Virgin Lake Park 50 60 74 61 0 -$                 


Racetrack Park 217 525 467 403 1 3.00$               
2439 County Hwy A DPW
*Account has solar - only calculated on the 


purchased usage 8972 9240 9185 9132 30 30.00$             


Lynn St Fountain 11 13 12 12 0 -$                 


W Washington St Parking Lot 106 31 18 52 0 -$                 


Totals 447 546.00$           


Annualized 6,552.00$       


Averages Choose Renewable





		09 R-172-2023 Enroll City of Stoughton in Choose Renewables Program.pdf

		City of Stoughton Choose Renewable budget 2024 10-26-2023.pdf






Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, November 7, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom: 
 


 https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83930804947?pwd=TjIvL3BxY1lwd1FJQTZoRkxYeWlaQT09 
 


 Meeting ID: 839 3080 4947  Passcode: 617785 
 One tap mobile 
  +19292056099,,83930804947#,,,,*617785# US (New York) 
  +13017158592,,83930804947#,,,,*617785# US (Washington DC) 
 In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
          321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin  
 Live streamed:  


The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live, Spectrum Channel 981 and 
TDS Channel 981.  The WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, 
Android and iOS.        
           


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg 
Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett 
Schumacher and Christina Wozniak Scanlon 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable 
to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call  
 
 2. Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form 
and submit it by 6:30 p.m. on November 7, 2023. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


 3.  Communications and Presentations: 
A. Debt Issue 2023A sale day report 10-31-2023 
B. Debt Issue 2023B approving certificate 10-31-2023 
C. 2024 budget PowerPoint – Mayor 
D. 2024 budget PowerPoint – Finance 
E. 2024 budget Public Works fees  


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton,            
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the 
time and location given below. 


 







 
4. Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – October 24, 2023 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5.   PUBLIC HEARING: 2024 City of Stoughton Operating Budget 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
6. R-169-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton 
Utilities 2024 Budget and Five-Year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). (Utilities 
Committee recommended approval of the Five-Year (2024-2028) CIP 5-0 on 9/18/2023) 
(Utilities Committee recommends approval 7-0 of the 2024 Budget on 10/16/23)  


7.  R-171-2023 Adoption of 2024 budget and tax levy (Committee of the Whole recommends 
approval of the 2024 Budget – Operations 10-0 on 10/5/2023)  


8.  R-172-2023 Enroll City of Stoughton in Choose Renewables program (Mayor proposed in 
2024 budget) 


ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83930804947?pwd=TjIvL3BxY1lwd1FJQTZoRkxYeWlaQT09 
Meeting ID: 839 3080 4947 
Passcode: 617785 
One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,83930804947#,,,,*617785# US (New York) 
+13017158592,,83930804947#,,,,*617785# US (Washington DC) 
Dial by your location 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 







• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
Meeting ID: 839 3080 4947 
Passcode: 617785 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb2aX9CTVq 








1


Dave Ehlinger


From: David Ferris <DFerris@ehlers-inc.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 12:58 PM
To: Dave Ehlinger; Tim Swadley
Cc: Lisa Trebatoski; Na Lee Lee; Kathy Myers
Subject: City of Stoughton, WI General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2023A
Attachments: SaleDayReport.Stoughton.2023A.pdf


CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking 
links, especially from unknown senders. 


Good afternoon Dave, 
  
As you are aware, we took bids today actually at 10:00 on the City’s Corporate Purpose Bonds.   We had great 
demand for the Bond issue, which lead to a successful sale for the City.  Here is a quick summary: 
  


 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2023A: 
o We received 6 bids with the winning bid coming from The Baker Group, out of Oklahoma City, 


OK with a True Interest Cost of 4.5137%. The high bid came in at 4.7264%. 
o The reduction of issuance costs along with receiving a small premium bid allowed for the 


following. 
 The amount issued was downsized by $80,000, so the amount to be approved today will 


be $6,225,000; and 


 The remaining premium of $6,301 will be deposited to the debt service to make a 
portion of the 2024 interest payments. 


o When compared to the presale report, the overall P&I on this issue will be $3,122 higher.  The 
presale report had an estimated True Interest Cost of 4.4562%, so this one was close. Rates 
have tracked upwards about 0.47% per maturity since the presale presentation on 9/26/23. 
 


I have attached our Sale Day Reports for you to provide to the Council. Also, you will see an email from 
Quarles this afternoon that will include the approving certificate and bid form that you will sign.   Please cc 
Ehlers in your reply to Quarles with the signed documents. 
 
We are happy to have a call with you to talk about the sale if you desire a call.   If you would like to have a call, 
please let us know what works in your schedule.  
 
Congratulations on the sale results! 
 


David Ferris 
Senior Municipal Advisor 
O: (262) 796-6194 | ehlers-inc.com  


 
Stay connected to what’s happening in the markets. View our Issuer & Investor Updates! 







 


 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 







 


 
Sale Day Report for City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 1 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 
Sale Day Report for City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 2 


 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 







 


 


BID TABULATION 
 


$6,305,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2023A 
 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 


SALE:  October 31, 2023 
 


AWARD:  THE BAKER GROUP 
 


Rating: Moody's Investor's Service "Aa2"   
Tax Exempt - Bank Qualified  


 


NAME OF BIDDER 
MATURITY 


(April 1)   


 
 


PRICE 


TRUE 
INTEREST 


RATE 
  REOFFERING 


YIELD 
 COUPON 


RATE 
  


THE BAKER GROUP    $6,311,702.60 4.5137% 
  Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 2024 4.250%  5.000%   
 2025 4.150%  5.000%   
 2026 4.050%  5.000%   
 2027 4.000%  5.000%   
 2028 4.000%  5.000%   
 2029 4.000%  5.000%   
 2030 4.000%  5.000%   
 2031 4.000%  5.000%   
 2032 4.050%  5.000%   
 2033 4.100%  5.000%   
 2034 4.150%  5.000%   
 2035 4.200%  4.000%   
 2036 4.250%  4.000%   
 2037 4.350%  4.125%   
 2038 4.400%  4.250%   
 2039 4.500%  4.250%   
 2040 4.550%  4.375%   
 2041 4.600%  4.500%   
 2042 4.630%  4.500%   
 2043 4.670%  4.500%   
      


 
* Subsequent to bid opening the issue size was decreased to $6,225,000. 
Adjusted Price - $6,231,301.35 Adjusted Net Interest Cost - $2,672,225.21 Adjusted TIC - 4.5132% 
  
 
 
 
 
  


Page 3







NAME OF BIDDER 
MATURITY 


(April 1) PRICE 


TRUE 
INTEREST 


RATE 


Bid Tabulation October 31, 2023 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 $6,305,000* General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2023A 


TD SECURITIES (USA) LLC $6,483,440.45 4.6014% 
 New York, New York 


NORTHLAND SECURITIES, INC. $6,478,847.60 4.6114% 
  Minneapolis, Minnesota 


BAIRD  $6,301,741.95 4.6146% 
  Milwaukee, Wisconsin 


HILLTOPSECURITIES  $6,357,240.70 4.6823% 
  Dallas, Texas 


BOK FINANCIAL SECURITIES, 
INC. 


 $6,426,689.05 4.7264% 


  Milwaukee, Wisconsin 


Page 4







Financing Plan / Issue Sizing
Preliminary Final
GO Bonds GO Bonds


2023 2023
Projects


Street Improvement Projects 3,737,887 3,737,887
Fire Department Equipment 452,630 452,630
Library Projects 50,000 50,000
Park Projects 957,725 957,725
Stormwater Utility 966,470 966,470


Project Needs 6,164,712 6,164,712


Reoffering Premium (built into rates) 0 (70,454)


Bid Premium Deposit to Debt Service 0 6,301


Issuance Expenses
Municipal Advisor 38,500 38,500
Bond Counsel 25,000 20,000
Rating 17,500 19,500
Paying Agent 850 800
Underwriter Fees 78,813 64,153


Total Funds Needed 6,325,375 6,243,512


Less Interest Earnings1 (20,549) (20,549)


Rounding 175 2,037


Size of Issue 6,305,000 6,225,000


Notes:
1 Interest on project funds is calculated at 4.00% for 1 months.


Page 5







Projected Impact of Proposed Projects
Less 


Abatements


YEAR YEAR Principal Interest Premium Total YEAR
2022 1,286,313,900 7.28% 5,202,535    (1,636,982)    3,565,553    2022                                                                                      3,565,553    2022
2023 1,499,453,200 16.57% 5,313,136    (1,334,462)    3,978,674    2023                                                                                                                         3,978,674    413,121     2023
2024 1,706,623,300 13.82% 5,040,202    (1,613,155)    3,427,047    2024 800,000        235,008       (6,301)   1,028,706    (73,620)        955,086       4,382,133    403,459     2024
2025 1,740,755,766 2.00% 5,026,239    (1,592,171)    3,434,068    2025 200,000        246,438                     446,438       (72,638)        373,800       3,807,868    (574,265)   2025
2026 1,775,570,881 2.00% 4,825,255    (1,463,416)    3,361,839    2026 205,000        236,313                     441,313       (76,013)        365,300       3,727,138    (80,729)     2026
2027 1,811,082,299 2.00% 4,365,901    (1,419,427)    2,946,474    2027 255,000        224,813                     479,813       (74,263)        405,550       3,352,024    (375,115)   2027
2028 1,847,303,945 2.00% 3,273,328    (1,310,479)    1,962,848    2028 275,000        211,563                     486,563       (72,513)        414,050       2,376,898    (975,126)   2028
2029 1,884,250,024 2.00% 2,885,034    (1,111,099)    1,773,935    2029 280,000        197,688                     477,688       (75,638)        402,050       2,175,984    (200,913)   2029
2030 1,921,935,024 2.00% 1,931,351    (666,766)        1,264,585    2030 280,000        183,688                     463,688       (73,638)        390,050       1,654,635    (521,350)   2030
2031 1,960,373,725 2.00% 1,699,624    (566,594)        1,133,030    2031 285,000        169,563                     454,563       (71,638)        382,925       1,515,955    (138,680)   2031
2032 1,999,581,199 2.00% 1,375,154    (494,429)        880,725       2032 295,000        155,063                     450,063       (74,513)        375,550       1,256,275    (259,680)   2032
2033 2,039,572,823 2.00% 1,302,635    (492,661)        809,974       2033 295,000        140,313                     435,313       (72,263)        363,050       1,173,023    (83,251)     2033
2034 2,080,364,280 2.00% 1,299,091    (490,146)        808,945       2034 295,000        125,563                     420,563       (74,888)        345,675       1,154,620    (18,404)     2034
2035 2,121,971,565 2.00% 959,473       (152,596)        806,876       2035 295,000        112,288                     407,288       (72,638)        334,650       1,141,526    (13,094)     2035
2036 2,164,410,997 2.00% 954,454       (150,374)        804,080       2036 300,000        100,388                     400,388       (75,538)        324,850       1,128,930    (12,596)     2036
2037 2,207,699,217 2.00% 885,375       (85,400)          799,975       2037 300,000        88,200                       388,200       (73,303)        314,897       1,114,872    (14,058)     2037
2038 2,251,853,201 2.00% 881,725       (82,600)          799,125       2038 305,000        75,531                       380,531       (75,894)        304,637       1,103,762    (11,110)     2038
2039 2,296,890,265 2.00% 262,400       (79,800)          182,600       2039 305,000        62,569                       367,569       (73,344)        294,225       476,825       (626,938)   2039
2040 2,342,828,070 2.00% 253,200       (77,000)          176,200       2040 310,000        49,306                       359,306       (75,647)        283,659       459,859       (16,966)     2040
2041 2,389,684,632 2.00% 244,000       (74,200)          169,800       2041 310,000        35,550                       345,550       (72,763)        272,787       442,587       (17,272)     2041
2042 2,437,478,324 2.00% 239,700       (71,400)          168,300       2042 315,000        21,488                       336,488       (74,725)        261,763       430,063       (12,525)     2042
2043 2,486,227,891 2.00%                                                                  2043 320,000        7,200                         327,200       (71,575)        255,625       255,625       (174,438)   2043


TOTALS 48,219,811 (14,965,158) 33,254,652 TOTALS 6,225,000 2,678,527 (6,301) 8,897,225 (1,477,052) 7,420,173 40,674,825 TOTALS


NOTES
Preliminary 6,305,000 2,589,103 0 8,894,103


Difference (80,000) 89,423 (6,301) 3,122


Change 
in 


Value
Sewerage 


System 
Projects - 


Capital Plan Debt Service
Net Debt 


Service Levy


Total 
Projected 


Debt Service 
Less 


Abatements


Existing Debt Payments Projected Debt Service


Equalized Value 
Projection


Total of All 
Obligations


Total 
Abatement 


Sources


Net Debt 
Service Levy


Levy 
Change


Page 6







Allocation of General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Page 1 of 2 


Issue Issue 1


Purpose


Amount
Dated
Payment Date


Year Principal Rate Interest Premium Total Principal Rate Interest Total Principal Rate Interest Premium Total
2023 0.00% -                  -               -               
2024 695,000      5.00% 137,872      (2,055)    830,817      35,000     5.00% 38,620     73,620        20,000     5.00% 18,203     (532)     37,671     
2025 100,000      5.00% 140,175      240,175      30,000     5.00% 42,638     72,638        20,000     5.00% 19,875     39,875     
2026 100,000      5.00% 135,175      235,175      35,000     5.00% 41,013     76,013        20,000     5.00% 18,875     38,875     
2027 150,000      5.00% 128,925      278,925      35,000     5.00% 39,263     74,263        20,000     5.00% 17,875     37,875     
2028 170,000      5.00% 120,925      290,925      35,000     5.00% 37,513     72,513        20,000     5.00% 16,875     36,875     
2029 170,000      5.00% 112,425      282,425      40,000     5.00% 35,638     75,638        20,000     5.00% 15,875     35,875     
2030 170,000      5.00% 103,925      273,925      40,000     5.00% 33,638     73,638        20,000     5.00% 14,875     34,875     
2031 170,000      5.00% 95,425        265,425      40,000     5.00% 31,638     71,638        20,000     5.00% 13,875     33,875     
2032 170,000      5.00% 86,925        256,925      45,000     5.00% 29,513     74,513        25,000     5.00% 12,750     37,750     
2033 170,000      5.00% 78,425        248,425      45,000     5.00% 27,263     72,263        25,000     5.00% 11,500     36,500     
2034 170,000      5.00% 69,925        239,925      50,000     5.00% 24,888     74,888        25,000     5.00% 10,250     35,250     
2035 170,000      4.00% 62,275        232,275      50,000     4.00% 22,638     72,638        25,000     4.00% 9,125       34,125     
2036 170,000      4.00% 55,475        225,475      55,000     4.00% 20,538     75,538        25,000     4.00% 8,125       33,125     
2037 170,000      4.13% 48,569        218,569      55,000     4.13% 18,303     73,303        25,000     4.13% 7,109       32,109     
2038 170,000      4.25% 41,450        211,450      60,000     4.25% 15,894     75,894        25,000     4.25% 6,063       31,063     
2039 170,000      4.25% 34,225        204,225      60,000     4.25% 13,344     73,344        25,000     4.25% 5,000       30,000     
2040 170,000      4.38% 26,894        196,894      65,000     4.38% 10,647     75,647        25,000     4.38% 3,922       28,922     
2041 170,000      4.50% 19,350        189,350      65,000     4.50% 7,763       72,763        25,000     4.50% 2,813       27,813     
2042 170,000      4.50% 11,700        181,700      70,000     4.50% 4,725       74,725        25,000     4.50% 1,688       26,688     
2043 175,000      4.50% 3,938          178,938      70,000     4.50% 1,575       71,575        25,000     4.50% 563          25,563     


3,770,000$ 1,513,997$ (2,055)$  5,281,942$ 980,000$ 497,045$ 1,477,045$ 460,000$ 215,234$ (532)$   674,702$ 


4/1 4/1 4/1


$3,770,000


11/16/2023


Sewerage System Projects - Stormwater Utility
$980,000


11/16/2023


Street Improvement Projects - Levy
$460,000


11/16/2023


Fire Department Equipment - Levy


Page 7







 Page 2 of 2 


Principal Rate Interest Premium Total Principal Rate Interest Premium Total Principal Interest Premium Total Outstanding
-             -               -                  -                  -             -                  6,225,000   


5,000     5.00% 2,063     (1,433)    5,629     45,000     5.00% 38,250     (2,281)    80,969        800,000      235,008      (6,301)    1,028,706   5,425,000   
5,000     5.00% 2,125     7,125     45,000     5.00% 41,625     86,625        200,000      246,438      -             446,438      5,225,000   
5,000     5.00% 1,875     6,875     45,000     5.00% 39,375     84,375        205,000      236,313      -             441,313      5,020,000   
5,000     5.00% 1,625     6,625     45,000     5.00% 37,125     82,125        255,000      224,813      -             479,813      4,765,000   
5,000     5.00% 1,375     6,375     45,000     5.00% 34,875     79,875        275,000      211,563      -             486,563      4,490,000   
5,000     5.00% 1,125     6,125     45,000     5.00% 32,625     77,625        280,000      197,688      -             477,688      4,210,000   
5,000     5.00% 875        5,875     45,000     5.00% 30,375     75,375        280,000      183,688      -             463,688      3,930,000   
5,000     5.00% 625        5,625     50,000     5.00% 28,000     78,000        285,000      169,563      -             454,563      3,645,000   
5,000     5.00% 375        5,375     50,000     5.00% 25,500     75,500        295,000      155,063      -             450,063      3,350,000   
5,000     5.00% 125        5,125     50,000     5.00% 23,000     73,000        295,000      140,313      -             435,313      3,055,000   


5.00% -                           50,000     5.00% 20,500     70,500        295,000      125,563      -             420,563      2,760,000   
4.00% -                           50,000     4.00% 18,250     68,250        295,000      112,288      -             407,288      2,465,000   
4.00% -                           50,000     4.00% 16,250     66,250        300,000      100,388      -             400,388      2,165,000   
4.13% -                           50,000     4.13% 14,219     64,219        300,000      88,200        -             388,200      1,865,000   
4.25% -                           50,000     4.25% 12,125     62,125        305,000      75,531        -             380,531      1,560,000   
4.25% -                           50,000     4.25% 10,000     60,000        305,000      62,569        -             367,569      1,255,000   
4.38% -                           50,000     4.38% 7,844       57,844        310,000      49,306        -             359,306      945,000      
4.50% -                           50,000     4.50% 5,625       55,625        310,000      35,550        -             345,550      635,000      
4.50% -                           50,000     4.50% 3,375       53,375        315,000      21,488        -             336,488      320,000      
4.50% -                           50,000     4.50% 1,125       51,125        320,000      7,200          -             327,200      -                  


50,000$ 12,188$ (1,433)$  60,754$ 965,000$ 440,063$ (2,281)$  1,402,781$ 6,225,000$ 2,678,527$ (6,301)$  8,897,225$ 


4/1 4/1


11/16/2023 11/16/2023


Library Projects - Levy Park Projects - Levy TOTAL 
$50,000 $965,000


Page 8







Debt Limit Calculation


46.78% 43.21% 36.92% 31.39% 26.15%


$0


$10,000


$20,000


$30,000


$40,000


$50,000


$60,000


$70,000


$80,000


$90,000


$100,000


Th
ou


sa
nd


s


City Policy = 80%


Statutory Debt Limit (5% of EV) City Approved Debt Limit Principal Outstanding


Page 9







U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


CREDIT OPINION
25 October 2023


Contacts


Tatum Drazen +1.312.706.9986
Associate Lead Analyst
tatum.drazen@moodys.com


Benjamin J VanMetre +1.312.706.9951
VP-Senior Analyst
ben.vanmetre@moodys.com


CLIENT SERVICES


Americas 1-212-553-1653


Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077


Japan 81-3-5408-4100


EMEA 44-20-7772-5454


City of Stoughton, WI
Update to credit analysis


Summary
The City of Stoughton's (Aa2) credit profile benefits from a growing tax base near the
Madison (Aaa stable) metropolitan area with a growing population and continued economic
development underway. Despite strict levy limits, the city has a consistently healthy financial
profile supported by good budget management and stable revenue sources. Resident income
and wealth trail similarly rated peers and leverage is moderate but will likely grow because of
the expansion of the city and associated capital needs.


Credit strengths


» Positive demographic trends benefitting from access to Madison metro


» Strong reserves and liquidity


Credit challenges


» Below average resident income metrics


» Moderate leverage that is expected to rise with future borrowing


Rating outlook
Outlooks are typically not assigned to local governments issuers with this amount of debt.


Factors that could lead to an upgrade


» Continued economic growth and improved resident incomes


» Further strengthening of reserves


Factors that could lead to a downgrade


» Economic contraction resulting in population, tax base, or income declines


» Decline in financial reserves


» Growth in long-term liabilities or fixed cost burden


Page 10



http://www.surveygizmo.com/s3/1133212/Rate-this-research?pubid=PBM_1386177

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Stoughton-City-of-WI-credit-rating-600005711/summary

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Madison-City-of-WI-credit-rating-600003239/summary





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


Key indicators


Exhibit 1


Stoughton (City of) WI


2019 2020 2021 2022 Aa Medians
Economy
Resident income ratio (%) 109.1% 105.6% 100.8% N/A 115.0%
Full Value ($000) $1,233,724 $1,268,042 $1,341,278 $1,567,794 $2,649,338
Population 13,097 13,146 13,158 N/A 22,694
Full value per capita ($) $94,199 $96,458 $101,936 N/A $108,666
Economic growth metric (%) N/A 0.4% 0.1% N/A -0.5%
Financial Performance
Revenue ($000) $38,157 $38,088 $43,987 $42,751 $48,404
Available fund balance ($000) $18,052 $18,856 $19,536 $20,999 $24,069
Net unrestricted cash ($000) $25,362 $24,074 $24,676 $27,848 $32,092
Available fund balance ratio (%) 47.3% 49.5% 44.4% 49.1% 51.0%
Liquidity ratio (%) 66.5% 63.2% 56.1% 65.1% 69.0%
Leverage
Debt ($000) $50,517 $48,236 $45,539 $46,763 $34,496
Adjusted net pension liabilities ($000) $18,674 $24,958 $31,040 $28,920 $55,543
Adjusted net OPEB liabilities ($000) $0 $0 $1,698 $1,560 $6,316
Other long-term liabilities ($000) $1,644 $2,937 $1,870 $2,591 $1,623
Long-term liabilities ratio (%) 185.6% 199.9% 182.2% 186.7% 244.8%
Fixed costs
Implied debt service ($000) $3,407 $3,683 $3,454 $3,194 $2,436
Pension tread water contribution ($000) $621 $423 $317 N/A $1,565
OPEB contributions ($000) $0 $0 $49 $47 $178
Implied cost of other long-term liabilities ($000) $119 $120 $210 $131 $109
Fixed-costs ratio (%) 10.9% 11.1% 9.2% 8.6% 11.1%


For definitions of the metrics in the table above please refer to the US Cities and Counties Methodology or see the Glossary in the Appendix below. Metrics represented as N/A indicate the
data were not available at the time of publication. The medians come from our most recently published US Cities and Counties Median Report.
The Economic Growth metric cited above compares the five-year CAGR of real GDP for Madison, WI Metropolitan Statistical Area to the five-year CAGR of real GDP for the US.
Sources: US Census Bureau, Stoughton (City of) WI’s financial statements and Moody’s Investors Service, US Bureau of Economic Analysis


Profile
The City of Stoughton is in southeastern Wisconsin (Aa1 stable), approximately 15 miles southeast of the City of Madison (Aaa stable).
The city provides public safety (police and fire), water, sewer, storm sewer and electric service to approximately 13,000 residents.


Detailed credit considerations
Stoughton, WI benefits from a consistently strong financial position with significant liquidity in government and business-type activity
funds. The regional economy is growing though resident income and wealth indicators trail similarly rated cities nationally. Stoughton
is within commuting distance to Madison (Aaa stable), home of the Wisconsin (Aa1 stable) state capital and the flagship campus of the
University of Wisconsin (Aa3 stable). Key credit challenges for the city include moderate long-term liabilities, which are expected to rise
because of material capital borrowing needs.


The city's stable financial operations and conservative budgeting are credit strengths and will support the maintenance of healthy
reserves. Management plans for a balanced budget in fiscal 2024. In fiscal 2023, management expects modest surpluses in the general
fund and across the business-type activities. The general fund receives annual PILOT payments from the city's utility systems, the
amounts of which are based on the net assets of the utilities. In fiscal 2022, the city's water, wastewater, and electric utility systems
transferred about $826,000 to the general fund. The city's waterworks (A1) and electric (A1) systems are expected to remain stable
while providing annual transfers to the general fund. The current 5-year capital improvement plan (CIP) calls for $5-$13 million in
annual borrowings, which would result in a notable increase in the city's leverage.


This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the issuer/deal page on https://ratings.moodys.com for the
most updated credit rating action information and rating history.


2          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 11



http://www.moodys.com/researchdocumentcontentpage.aspx?docid=PBM_1300170

https://www.moodys.com/research/Cities-and-Counties-US-Medians-Property-values-support-revenue-and--PBM_1359690

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Wisconsin-State-of-credit-rating-800043271/summary

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Madison-City-of-WI-credit-rating-600003239/summary

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Stoughton-City-of-WI-Waterworks-System-credit-rating-821868286/summary

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/Stoughton-City-of-WI-Electric-Enterprise-credit-rating-903619054/summary





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


Economy


Exhibit 2


Resident Income


Median household income ($) Resident income ratio (%) Aa median resident income ratio (%)


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
0


20,000


40,000


60,000


100


105


110


115


120


Source: Moody's Investors Service


Financial operations


Exhibit 3


Fund Balance


General fund Other governmental funds Internal service funds Business-type activities
Available fund balance ratio (%) Aa median available fund balance ratio (%)


2019 2020 2021 2022


0


10,000


$20,000


44


46


48


50


Source: Moody's Investors Service


Liquidity


3          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 12







MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


Exhibit 4


Cash


General fund Other governmental funds Internal service funds Business-type activities Liquidity ratio (%)
Aa median liquidity ratio (%)


2019 2020 2021 2022
0


10,000


20,000


$30,000


60


65


70


Source: Moody's Investors Service


Exhibit 5


Total Primary Government - Long Term Liabilities


Governmental Debt Business-Type Activity Debt Adjusted net pension liabilities
Adjusted net other post-employment liabilities Other long-term liabilities Long-term liabilities ratio (%)
Aa median long-term liabilities ratio (%)


2019 2020 2021 2022
0


20,000


40,000


60,000


$80,000


180


200


220


240


Source: Moody's Investors Service


ESG considerations
Stoughton (City of) WI's ESG Credit Impact Score is Neutral-to-Low CIS-2


Exhibit 6


ESG Credit Impact Score


Source: Moody's Investors Service


4          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 13







MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


Stoughton’s overall ESG Credit Impact Score is neutral to low (CIS-2), reflecting neutral to low exposure to environmental, social, and
governance risks.


Exhibit 7


ESG Issuer Profile Scores


Source: Moody's Investors Service


Environmental
Stoughton’s E issuer profile score is neutral to low (E-2), reflecting relatively low exposure to environmental risks across all categories,
including physical climate risk, carbon transition, natural resources management, waste and pollution. Dane County, where the city is
located, maintains a comprehensive plan for mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery in the event of disaster.


Social
Stoughton's S issuer profile score is neutral to low (S-2), reflecting relatively neutral to low exposure to social risks across categories,
including demographics, housing, health and safety, and access to basic services. The city has relatively strong economic trends, high
educational attainment, low unemployment rate and an average labor force participation rate.


Governance
Stoughton’s G issuer profile score is neutral to low (G-2), reflecting solid transparency and budget management balanced against a
relatively restrictive institutional structure. Property tax revenue is the city’s major revenue source and is subject to a cap that limits
increases to the growth in net new construction. Stoughton has several adopted policies, including a formal fund balance policy and a
long-term capital improvement plan.


ESG Issuer Profile Scores and Credit Impact Scores for the rated entity/transaction are available on Moodys.com. In order to view the
latest scores, please click here to go to the landing page for the entity/transaction on MDC and view the ESG Scores section.


5          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 14



https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/org-credit-rating-600005711





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


Rating methodology and scorecard factors


The US Cities and Counties Rating Methodology includes a scorecard, which summarizes the rating factors generally most important to
city and county credit profiles. Because the scorecard is a summary, and may not include every consideration in the credit analysis for a
specific issuer, a scorecard-indicated outcome may or may not map closely to the actual rating assigned.


Exhibit 8


Stoughton (City of) WI


Measure Weight Score
Economy
Resident income ratio 100.8% 10.0% Aa
Full value per capita 135,869 10.0% Aa
Economic growth metric 0.1% 10.0% Aaa
Financial Performance
Available fund balance ratio 49.1% 20.0% Aaa
Liquidity ratio 65.1% 10.0% Aaa
Institutional Framework
Institutional Framework Aa 10.0% A
Leverage
Long-term liabilities ratio 186.7% 20.0% Aa
Fixed-costs ratio 8.6% 10.0% Aaa
Notching factors
No notchings applied
Scorecard-Indicated Outcome Aa2
Assigned Rating Aa2


The complete list of outstanding ratings assigned to the Stoughton (City of) WI is available on their issuer page. Details on the current ESG scores assigned to the Stoughton (City of) WI
are available on their ESGView page.
Sources: US Census Bureau, Stoughton (City of) WI’s financial statements and Moody’s Investors Service


6          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 15



https://www.moodys.com/search?keyword=600005711&searchfrom=GS

https://www.moodys.com/esg-views/credit-risk/600005711





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


Appendix


Exhibit 9


Key Indicators Glossary


Definition Typical Source*
Economy
Resident income ratio Median Household Income (MHI) for the city or county, adjusted for


Regional Price Parity (RPP), as a % of the US MHI
MHI: US Census Bureau - American
Community Survey 5-Year Estimates
RPP: US Bureau of Economic Analysis


Full value Estimated market value of taxable property in the city or county State repositories; audited financial
statements; continuing disclosures


Population Population of the city or county US Census Bureau - American Community
Survey 5-Year Estimates


Full value per capita Full value / population
Economic growth metric Five year CAGR of real GDP for Metropolitan Statistical Area or


county minus the five-year CAGR of real GDP for the US
Real GDP: US Bureau of Economic Analysis


Financial performance
Revenue Sum of revenue from total governmental funds, operating and non-


operating revenue from total business-type activities, and non-
operating revenue from internal services funds, excluding transfers
and one-time revenue, e.g., bond proceeds or capital contributions


Audited financial statements


Available fund balance Sum of all fund balances that are classified as unassigned, assigned or
committed in the total governmental funds, plus unrestricted current
assets minus current liabilities from the city's or county's business-
type activities and internal services funds


Audited financial statements


Net unrestricted cash Sum of unrestricted cash in governmental activities, business type
activities and internal services fund, net of short-term debt


Audited financial statements


Available fund balance ratio Available fund balance (including net current assets from business-
type activities and internal services funds) / Revenue


Liquidity ratio Net unrestricted cash / Revenue
Leverage
Debt Outstanding long-term bonds and all other forms of long-term debt


across the governmental and business-type activities, including debt
of another entity for which it has provided a guarantee disclosed in
its financial statements


Audited financial statements; official
statements


Adjusted net pension liabilities (ANPL) Total primary government's pension liabilities adjusted by Moody's to
standardize the discount rate used to compute the present value of
accrued benefits


Audited financial statements; Moody's
Investors Service


Adjusted net OPEB liabilities (ANOL) Total primary government's net other post-employment benefit
(OPEB) liabilities adjusted by Moody's to standardize the discount
rate used to compute the present value of accrued benefits


Audited financial statements; Moody's
Investors Service


Other long-term liabilities (OLTL) Miscellaneous long-term liabilities reported under the governmental
and business-type activities entries


Audited financial statements


Long-term liabilities ratio Debt + ANPL + ANOL + OLTL / Revenue
Fixed costs
Implied debt service Annual cost to amortize city or county's long-term debt over 20


years with level payments
Audited financial statements; official
statements; Moody's Investors Service


Pension tread water contribution Pension contribution necessary to prevent reported unfunded
pension liabilities from growing, year over year, in nominal dollars, if
all actuarial assumptions are met


Audited financial statements; Moody's
Investors Service


OPEB contribution City or county's actual contribution in a given period Audited financial statements
Implied cost of OLTL Annual cost to amortize city or county's other long-term liabilities


over 20 years with level payments
Audited financial statements; Moody's
Investors Service


Fixed-costs ratio Implied debt service + Pension tread water + OPEB contributions +
Implied cost of OLTL / Revenue


*Note: If typical data source is not available then alternative sources or proxy data may be considered. For more detailed definitions of the metrics listed above please refer to the US City
and Counties Methodology .
Source: Moody's Investors Service


7          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 16



http://www.moodys.com/researchdocumentcontentpage.aspx?docid=PBM_1300170

http://www.moodys.com/researchdocumentcontentpage.aspx?docid=PBM_1300170





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


© 2023 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved.
CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND INFORMATION PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S (COLLECTIVELY,
“PUBLICATIONS”) MAY INCLUDE SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL
FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT. SEE APPLICABLE MOODY’S
RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE TYPES OF CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY’S
CREDIT RATINGS. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE
VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS, NON-CREDIT ASSESSMENTS (“ASSESSMENTS”), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND
RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC. AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. MOODY’S CREDIT
RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR.
MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLISHES ITS PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING
THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE,
HOLDING, OR SALE.
MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE
RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS OR PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING
AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.
ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED
OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE
FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT.
MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS
DEFINED FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK.
All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well
as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it
uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the credit rating process or in preparing its Publications.
To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any
indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any
such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a
particular credit rating assigned by MOODY’S.
To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory
losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.
NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT
RATING, ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation (“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including
corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any credit rating,
agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings opinions and services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,000 to approximately $5,000,000. MCO and Moody’s
Investors Service also maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of Moody’s Investors Service credit ratings and credit rating processes. Information regarding
certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold credit ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and have also
publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance
— Charter Documents - Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”
Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors
Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended
to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you
represent to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or
indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an opinion as to
the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors.
Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s
Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered
with the Japan Financial Services Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.
MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred
stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have, prior to assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for credit ratings opinions and services
rendered by it fees ranging from JPY100,000 to approximately JPY550,000,000.
MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.


REPORT NUMBER 1386177


8          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 17



https://www.moodys.com/





MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE


CLIENT SERVICES


Americas 1-212-553-1653


Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077


Japan 81-3-5408-4100


EMEA 44-20-7772-5454


9          25 October 2023 City of Stoughton, WI: Update to credit analysis
Page 18







3 YEAR TREND IN MUNICIPAL BOND INDICES


Source: The Bond Buyer


The Bond Buyer “20 Bond Index” (BBI) shows average yields on a group of municipal bonds that 
mature in 20 years and have an average rating equivalent to Moody’s Aa2 and S&P’s AA. 


Page 19





		Memo Style.pdf

		SaleDayReport.Stoughton.2023A.pdf
























































		20231031161000619.pdf

		C-Stoughton approving certificate 2023A 10-31-2023.pdf










MAYORS PRIORITIES


Wage increase to recruit & retain staff


Maintain Quartz as our Health Care provider


Improve Health Insurance offering


Additional staffing utilizing Supplemental Shared Revenue


Additional staffing utilizing Net-new Construction


Additional staffing utilizing other/combinations of funding sources


Restructure Fire & EMS Departments







SUPPLEMENTAL SHARED REVENUE DOLLARS


Fire & EMS Fire position(s) new positions=40 hours/week-Fire funding available & included, EMS funds coming from Enterprise Fund 
Public Works Machine Operator-additional position=40 hours/week-City Council approved in 2023


NET-NEW CONSTRUCTION DOLLARS


Senior Center Program Director-additional 8 hours/week-City Council approved in 2023
Park & Recreation Admin. Assistant-Additional 15 hours/week-Personnel Committee recommends approval, funding available & included
IT- Media Services additional hours-Additional 5k-Funding available & included


OTHER FUNDING SOURCES-Includes TIF, Cost Reimbursement, Interest Income, Part time Dispatch Pool


Assistant Finance Director-new position=40 hours/week-Funding available & included
Police Officer-new position=40 hours/week-Propose funding: annual unused Dispatcher budget dollars, funding available & included
Library Circulation Supervisor-additional 10 hours=40 hours/week Filled & funded in 2023 using cost savings from retirement


OTHERS TO BE CONSIDERED AT PERSONNEL COMMITTEE


Senior Center Case Manager-additional 20 hours/week-Personnel Committee recommends approval, funding available & included
Clerk Department Administrative Assistant new position=20 hours/week-Personnel Committee recommends approval, funding available & included
Fire Department-Duty Crew & Increased Stipends-Personnel Committee did not recommend approval
Police Department-Dispatcher-new position=40 hours/week-Personnel Committee did not recommend approval


ADDITIONAL STAFFING REQUESTS








City of 
Stoughton  
Proposed 


Budget
Budget Year 2024







Tax levy – Budget Year 2024







Other fiscal information
 Total expenditures/expenses (excluding Stoughton Utilities) 


$39,523,082


 Storm Water annual Equivalent Runoff Unit (ERU) charge - $84.12 per 
year which is an increase of $3.06 or 3.9%.


 Refuse collection charge - $207.36 per year, which is an increase of 
$7.09 or 3.5%.


 Committed fund balance (General Fund)
 Retirement payouts as per R-175-2022 $ 85,000


 Expenditure Restraint Program 39,000


 Levy limit constraints 32,291


 DEI Task Force carryforward from 2023 to 2024 5,000


 Total $161,291







Changes from last Committee of the Whole 
meeting
 Correction of levy limit calculation applicable to personal property aids


 Verify adherence to Expenditure Restraint Program guidelines (with 
assumptions made as to how the Department of Revenue handles the 
Supplemental Shared Revenue effect on expenditures).


 Personnel


 All departments – Ensure life insurance expense applies only to WRS eligible 
employees


 Police


 Ensure all prior individual wage increases accounted for


 Remove part-time dispatch pool while retaining dispatch overtime pool


 Increase crossing guard wages to $15 per hour


 Add an additional Civilian Service Officer (CSO) for 10 hours per week







Changes from last Committee of the Whole 
meeting (continued)
 Personnel (continue)


 City Clerk


 Reduce current Administrative Assistant from 22.5 hours to 20 hours per week


 Add an additional Administrative Assistant at 20 hours per week


 Library


 Add Children’s Services Assistant – 1040 hours at $19.86 per hour plus FICA taxes


 Add Children’s Services Assistant – 1040 hours at $16.20 per hour plus FICA taxes


 Delete Youth/Circulation Services Assistant (vacant) – 2080 hours at $22.99 plus FICA taxes and 
WRS pension


 Delete Children’s Services Assistant – 280 hours at $16.20 per hour plus FICA taxes


 Senior Center


 Add New Case Manager for 1040 hours plus FICA taxes


 Capital Improvement Plan – Addition of a new emergency warning siren covering 
Nordic Ridge and Kettle Park West - $45,000 paid for with bond proceeds.


 Shared Ride Services ride fees increased by $0.25 instead of $0.50 per trip.







Wages and benefits
 Wage increase at 4.5% for all non-union employees, 


excluding Stoughton Utilities.
 Wage increase at 4.5% for all union employees 
 Health insurance (all employees including Stoughton 


Utilities)
 Increase proposed by former insurance broker was 9.9%
New broker obtained 6% increase quote – Now 5% as of 


11/3/23!!
No changes in plan design
Adding NearSite Clinic to help control costs for both 


employees & city, along with more appointment 
availability.


Employees – NO INCREASE in premium deductions
Departments – 6% 5% increase in premiums plus the 6% 5% 


employee premium increase that was not passed along.























Property tax, 46.6%


Intergovernmental revenues, 
22.7%


PILOT agreements, 6.7%


All other income sources, 5.7%


Charges for services - other, 
5.6%


Investment income, 5.2%


Charges for services - public, 
3.4%


Licenses & permits, 2.8%
Fund balance applied, 1.3%


General Fund revenues - 2024 proposed budget











Debt proceeds, 30.0%


Property tax, 28.1%


Intergovernmental revenues, 
12.7%


Public sharges for services, 
12.5%


Other taxes, 4.3%


Transfer In, 3.5%


Investment income, 2.8%
All other income sources, 2.2%


PILOT agreements, 2.0%
Charges for services - other, 


1.9%


Revenues - All Funds - Mayor proposed budget 2024
(excludes Stoughton Utilities)











General Fund, 30.4%


Capital outlay - other, 22.5%


Debt service, 15.7%


Special revenue funds, 11.4%


Capital outlay - street/storm 
sewer construction, 11.1%


Tax increment districts, 4.2%
Storm sewer, 2.3%


Emergency Medical Services, 
2.3%


Fiduciary, 0.1%


Revenue by major/minor funds - Mayor proposed budget 2024
(excludes Stoughton Utilities)











Wages, 55.38%


Operating expenses, 22.84%


Benefits, 21.74%


Transfer Out, 0.04%


General Fund - expenditure categories - Mayor proposed budget 2024











Health insurance, 50.6%


Social Security taxes, 19.4%


WRS contribution - protective, 
14.1%


WRS contribution - general & 
elected, 9.2%


Retirement sick leave payout, 
3.3%


Dental insurance, 2.6%
Life insurance, 0.8%


General Fund - Benefit breakdown - Mayor proposed budget 2024











Public Safety, 42.4%


General Government, 25.9%


Public Works, 13.8%


Culture, Recreation, Education, 
8.6%


Health & Human Services, 6.4%


Conservation & Development, 
2.8%


General Fund - expenditures by fiscal category - Mayor proposed budget 2024











Capital Outlay, 33.4%


Wages, 21.0%


Operating expenses, 17.3%


Principal payment, 12.6%


Benefits, 8.0%


Transfer Out, 3.5%


Interest and fiscal charges, 
3.3%


Depreciation, 0.9%


All funds - Expenditure categories - Mayor proposed budget 2024
(excludes Stoughton Utilities)











Health insurance, 50.8%


Social Security taxes, 19.9%


WRS contribution - protective, 
12.0%


WRS contribution - general & 
elected, 10.1%


Dental insurance, 2.7%


Retirement sick leave payouts, 
2.7%


Actuarial expenses, 0.9% Life insurance, 0.8%


All funds - Benefit breakdown - Mayor proposed budget 2024
(excludes Stoughton Utilities)











Culture, Recreation, Education, 
26.4%


Public Works, 20.2%


Debt Service, 15.7%


Public Safety, 14.7%


General Government, 9.1%


Conservation & Development, 
6.1%


Health & Human Services, 3.1%
Storm Sewer, 2.3%


Emergency Medical Services, 
2.3%


All funds - expense by fiscal category - Mayor proposed budget 2024
(excludes Stoughton Utilities)







Questions?


Please contact:


David P. Ehlinger, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller
207 S. Forrest St.
Stoughton, WI  53589
(608) 873-6691
dehlinger@cityofstoughton.com








2024 JOHNS DISPOSAL MONTHLY FEE 
INCREASE


• Johns is requesting a 2.8% cost-of-living increase for 2024, which is allowed per our 
current contract.  The consumer price index for the mid-west region was 3.2% in 
September, which is the most they could have asked for.


SERVICE 2023 2024 $ INCREASE 


GARBAGE $9.95 $10.23 $0.28


RECYCLING $4.85 $4.99 $0.14


BULK $2.50 $2.57 $0.07


TOTAL $17.30 $17.79 $0.49 







2024 ANNUAL YARD WASTE SITE FEE 
INCREASE


2023 2024


Resident  $20      $25


Non-Resident $25      $30








Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   


Date//Time: Tuesday, October 24, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 


 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher 
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon 


 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Christen called the roll and noted 8 alders present.  Alders Majewski, Wozniak Scanlon, and Heili joined 
by 7:05, and Hirsch was absent and excused. 
 
Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
Mayor Swadley noted the meeting had been properly noticed. 
 
Public Comment Period: 
None 
 
Communications and Presentations: 
 A.  Community Foundation update – Jerry Wendt provided an update regarding grant requests and 


Foundation Improvement Fund and ARPA Recipients.    
      B.  Notice of public hearing on proposed municipal budget for 2024- Director Ehlinger noted the 


budget notice had been published, and asked if there were any questions. 
      C.  Delinquent debt principal payment update- Director Ehlinger provided details and explained how 


the delinquent debt principal payment will be noted on bond issues going forward.  Internal controls 
now in place to keep this current. 


 D.  Sports, Recreation, and Aquatics Feasibility Study – Hunden Strategic Partners reviewed their 
findings of the Market and Financial Feasibility study and answered questions about sports   
recreation and aquatics. 


 E.  Preliminary offering statement – Debt issue 2023A – Director Ehlinger provided an update as 
informational only, this document is distributed to potential bond buyers. 


 F. Mayor Swadley noted the special council meeting to be held on November 7, for the 2024 Budget. 
          
Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – October 10, 2023 
       B.  Committee Minutes and Reports:  Planning (9/11/23); Landmarks (9/14/23); Joint Review (9/11/23);    
 Public Works (9/23/23) 
       C.  R-163-2023 Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointments to Boards, Committees, and 
 Commissions, Pursuant to 2-127 of the Municipal Code. 
      D.  Minutes of the August 21, 2023 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting; Minutes of the September     
 18, 2023 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting; Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report; 







 Stoughton Utilities Financial Summary – June, July, and August 2023; Stoughton Utilities 
 Statistical Report  
 
Motion by Schroerlucke, second by Butler to approve the Consent Agenda.  Reeves noted an update to 
the R-162-2023, the minutes reflect “the investigation into the transfer”, not “the transfer was 
approved”.  Motion carried 11-0. 
                      
OLD BUSINESS    


None 
 
 NEW BUSINESS 


R-164-2023 Conditional use request for a Bed and Breakfast at 217-219 S. Fourth Street.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Schroerlucke to approve R-164-2023 Conditional use request for a Bed 
and Breakfast at 217-219 S. Fourth Street.   


Motion by Majewski, second by Reeves to table R-164-2023 Conditional use request for a Bed and 
Breakfast at 217-219 S. Fourth Street for the clarification of the intent of a Bed and Breakfast and that it 
is not to be classified an Air Bed and Breakfast.  Motion carried 11-0. 


R-165-2023 Conditional use request for a Personal and Professional Service use (tattoo parlor) at 529 E. 
Main Street.  


Motion by Caravello, second by Payton to approve R-165-2023 Conditional use request for a Personal 
and Professional Service use (tattoo parlor) at 529 E. Main Street with the condition of onsite parking 
requirement and driveway agreement to be met. Motion carried 11-0. 


Discussion and possible action concerning timing for Common Council appointing City Attorney. 


Schumacher presented the background for this item that the Finance Committee discussed.  Contracts 
could be reviewed annually however the length of contract will 2-3 years.  Review would be during the 
reorganizational meeting. 


Motion by Jenson, second by Heili to make the review of the contract part of the annual 
Reorganizational meeting. Motion carried 11-0. 


O-30-2023 Repeal Section 2-166 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances related to City Attorney 
appointment.  


No action taken; this will be back before Finance Committee. 


R-166-2023 Acceptance of Report on Federal and State Awards dated December 31, 2022  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-166-2023 Acceptance of Report on Federal and 
State Awards dated December 31, 2022. Motion carried. 


R-167-2023 Payment for Municipal Services Agreement – Housing Authority of the City of Stoughton  







Motion by Schumacher, second by Caravello to approve R-167-2023 Payment for Municipal Services 
Agreement – Housing Authority of the City of Stoughton. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-168-2023 Offer to purchase property located at 2464 County A, Town of Dunkirk  


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-168-2023 Offer to purchase property located at 
2464 County A, Town of Dunkirk. Motion carried 11-0.  R-168-2023 was recommended for approval by 
Finance 6-0 on 10/24/2023. 


 R-169-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 
2024 Budget and Five-Year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  


Stoughton Utilities proposed 2024 Budget was proposed by Director Weiss and Shannon Statz.  


Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to postpone approval until the November 7th, 2023 Common 
Council Budget Hearing.  Motion carried 11-0. 


R-170-2023 Negotiate developer agreement with Emmi Roth USA for installation of solar panels  
R-170-2023 was recommended by the Finance Committee 7-0 on October 24, 20223. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(e) 
Deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 
session. Motion carried 11-0. 9:20 p.m. 
     
Motion by Jenson, second by Schumacher to reconvene in open session.  Motion carried 11-0. 10:05 
p.m. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-170-2023 Authorizing the Mayor and City 
Attorney to negotiate a development agreement with Emmi Roth USA for the installation of solar panels 
on their new building within the terms described in the Term Sheet attached as Exhibit A. Subject to the 
amendments made to the Term Sheet in Closed session. Motion carried 10-1. (Payton no) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Jenson, second by Schroerlucke to adjourn. Motion carried 11-0.  10:07 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Candee J. Christen 
City Clerk 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through 
appropriate aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at 
(608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 







https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89727245335?pwd=8XS185oY04tmRkHxZt6ZWJvubcGrXz.1 
 
Meeting ID: 897 2724 5335 
Passcode: 869314 
 
One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,89727245335#,,,,*869314# US (New York)  
+13017158592,,89727245335#,,,,*869314# US (Washington DC)--- 
 
Dial by your location 
• +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
• +1 305 224 1968 US 
• +1 309 205 3325 US 
• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
• +1 646 931 3860 US 
• +1 689 278 1000 US 
• +1 719 359 4580 US 
• +1 253 205 0468 US 
• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
• +1 360 209 5623 US 
• +1 386 347 5053 US 
• +1 507 473 4847 US 
• +1 564 217 2000 US 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 
• +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
 
Meeting ID: 897 2724 5335 
Passcode: 869314 
 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kz6GbT3ju 
 
 








 
City of Stoughton, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2024 Budget 
and Five-Year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval of the Five-Year 
(2024-2028) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 5-0 on September 18, 2023. 


Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval of the 2024 Budget  
7 - 0 on October 16, 2023 


 
Fiscal Impact: Total expenses $20,612,344 offset by operating revenues from rates 
 
File Number: 


 
R-169-2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 24, 2023 


WHEREAS, in 2023, Stoughton Utilities staff, along with its engineering and financial consultants, in 
cooperation with City of Stoughton staff, initiated the development of the proposed 2024 Stoughton 
Utilities Budget and five-year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement Program; and 


WHEREAS, the proposed Stoughton Utilities budget includes $20,612,344 in expenses; 


WHEREAS, on September 18, 2023, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the 
proposed Stoughton Utilities five-year (2023-2027) Capital Improvement Plan, and recommended 
approval to the Stoughton Common Council; and 


WHEREAS, on October 16, 2023, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the 
proposed 2024 Stoughton Utilities Budget, and recommended approval to the Stoughton Common 
Council; now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the five-year (2024-2028) 
Capital Improvement Plan and the 2024 Stoughton Utilities budget appropriations in the sum of 
$20,612,344 and for purposes herein set forth by the same are hereby approved.    


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    
Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







 
City of Stoughton, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2024 Budget 


and Five-Year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval of the Five-Year 


(2024-2028) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 5-0 on September 18, 2023. 


Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval of the 2024 Budget  


7 - 0 on October 16, 2023 
 
Fiscal Impact: Total expenses $20,612,344 offset by operating revenues from rates 


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
October 24, 2023 


WHEREAS, in 2023, Stoughton Utilities staff, along with its engineering and financial consultants, in 


cooperation with City of Stoughton staff, initiated the development of the proposed 2024 Stoughton 


Utilities Budget and five-year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement Program; and 


WHEREAS, the proposed Stoughton Utilities budget includes $20,612,344 in expenses; 


WHEREAS, on September 18, 2023, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the 


proposed Stoughton Utilities five-year (2023-2027) Capital Improvement Plan, and recommended 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council; and 


WHEREAS, on October 16, 2023, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met to consider and approve the 


proposed 2024 Stoughton Utilities Budget, and recommended approval to the Stoughton Common 


Council; now therefore 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the five-year (2024-2028) 


Capital Improvement Plan and the 2024 Stoughton Utilities budget appropriations in the sum of 


$20,612,344 and for purposes herein set forth by the same are hereby approved.    


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, September 18, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


 


data sources, and results, with the goal of ensuring a smooth transition from the prior practice of annual flat 


percentage increases.  The chair reminded the committee of the success of the 2022 market wage analysis, 


including the understanding and positive reception from staff. 


Staff presented a rate comparison of current water and wastewater rates of Stoughton and the surrounding 


communities, highlighting where the utility’s current and five-year projected rates fell in comparison and showing 


our rates remain competitive in the area.  The committee was favorable to the proposed budget, including the 


forecasted consistent increases in rates.  Staff was requested to prepare a plan to transparently communicate 


the need for future rate increases to customers. 


Staff informed the committee that following the meeting the budget calculations will be finalized and drafted into 


the proposed 2024 operating budget.  The final proposed Stoughton Utilities 2024 budget will be presented to 


the committee at the October meeting for review, approval, and recommendation to the Stoughton Common 


Council. 


Stoughton Utilities Proposed Five Year (2024 – 2028) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Program:  


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the proposed five-year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement 


Projects (CIP) program.  Staff informed the committee that the CIP was developed by reviewing system 


engineering studies, regulatory agency requirements, potential joint projects with other Stoughton Departments 


and the Wisconsin Department of Transportation to yield economy of scale savings, and development-lead 


projects.  Significant projects, including water and sanitary sewer main replacement projects, were highlighted.  


Discussion followed.   


Motion by Chenoweth, the motion seconded by Hirsch, to approve the Stoughton Utilities five-year (2024-2028) 


Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan and recommend approval to the Stoughton Common Council at their 


October 24, 2023 and November 7, 2023 meetings.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Chenoweth left the meeting at 7:11 p.m. resulting in the loss of a quorum.  The Chair elected to continue the 


meeting as the remainder of the agenda items were for discussion only. 


Wastewater Treatment Facility and Sanitary Sewer Collection System 2022 Compliance Maintenance 


Annual Report (CMAR): WDNR Response:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented an update to our annual CMAR 


filing, which was approved by the Utilities Committee and Common Council in May and filed with the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) in June.  The WDNR has received and approved our filing, providing 


favorable comments, and no further action is needed until the 2023 CMAR filing that will occur in June 2024.   


WDNR 2022 Wisconsin Public Water Systems Annual Drinking Water Report:  Stoughton Utilities staff 


presented the 2022 Wisconsin Public Water Systems Annual Drinking Water Report published by the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (WDNR), highlighting the inclusion of Stoughton Utilities as a recipient of Safe 


Drinking Water Loan Program funding for drinking water projects, which reimbursed the utility for funds spent 


during its 2021 lead service line removal program. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that a presentation 


from WPPI Energy staff will occur at the October or November meeting and that staff will finalize the Stoughton 


Utilities 2024 operating budget for presentation to the committee in October.  Staff is working to schedule a 


presentation by the utility’s investment advisor providing an annual report regarding the period’s investment 



bhoops

Highlight







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 16, 2023 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


recently approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Business: 


1. Authorizing the Partial Release of a Platted Public Utility Easement on Lot 141 of John Nygaard’s 


Virgin Lake Estates (2108 Wood View Dr), recorded as Document No. 5618013, Dane County Registry 


Discussion followed.     


Status of the PSCW Electric Rate Application Filing:  Staff provided the committee with an update on the 


electric rate application that was filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) in February 


2023.  The PSCW has completed their application cost of service study review and has moved it on to rate 


design.  The projected approved rate of return is 6.2%, below the 7.0% applied for.  A public hearing is being 


planned for November, likely the 14th or 15th, with a date and time to be finalized in the upcoming weeks.  Hearing 


notices will be distributed in customers’ billing statements and with a legal notice in the newspaper.  Depending 


upon hearing and approval timing, the new rates may become effective December 1, 2023 or January 1, 2024. 


Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2024 Operating Budget:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed 


preliminary projections that will be used to create the proposed 2024 electric, water, and wastewater budgets.  


Staff informed the committee that the budget had not changed substantially from the budget preview that was 


presented to the committee at their September 18, 2023 meeting.  A verbal summary of the changes that were 


made following the preview was provided.   


Staff presented a rate comparison of current water and wastewater rates of Stoughton and the surrounding 


communities, highlighting where the utility’s current and five-year projected rates fell in comparison and showing 


our rates remain competitive in the area.  Discussion followed. 


The committee had questions regarding rate impacts to lower income customers, which lead to a discussion on 


the energy assistance program and what can be done to ensure customers have knowledge of the program and 


available funding, and improve ease of application with the goal of increasing participation in the program.  


Motion by Chenoweth, the motion seconded by Jensen, to approve the Stoughton Utilities proposed 2024 budget 


appropriations in the sum of $20,612,344 and for purposes herein set forth by the same, and recommend 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council at their November 7, 2023 meeting.  The motion carried unanimously 


7 to 0. 


Following approval, Payton thanked staff for the information provided, for their diligence when preparing the 


budget, and for their continued efforts to educate and inform the committee.  Other members expressed 


agreement. 


Stoughton Utilities & City of Stoughton Investments: Annual Report:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented a 


history of the City of Stoughton Investment Policy and the requirement contained within that the City’s/Utility’s 


investment advisor will provide an annual report to the Finance Committee and Utilities Committee noting the 


annual investment activity, portfolio summary, and recommendations for improvements.  At this time the returns 


are acceptable and appropriate for the market, and no recommendations for improvements were made to the 


committee.  Discussion followed. 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 
Date:  September 8, 2023 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Shannon Statz 


  Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager 


Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Proposed Five-Year (2024 – 2028) Capital Improvement Projects 


(CIP) Program 


 


The Stoughton Utilities proposed Five-Year Capital Projects Program has been developed utilizing 


system engineering studies, regulatory agency requirements, potential joint projects with other 


Stoughton Departments and the Wisconsin Department of Transportation to yield economy of scale 


savings, and development-lead projects.    


 


The Stoughton Utilities Proposed Five-Year (2024 – 2028) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Program 


is provided at this time for committee approval.  The committee-approved CIP will be used by staff to 


finalize our budget calculations and complete our proposed Stoughton Utilities 2024 budget, which will 


be presented to the committee for approval at its October meeting.  Along with our 2024 Operating 


Budget, the CIP is scheduled for presentation at the Common Council meeting on October 24, 2023 and 


adoption on November 7, 2023. 


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve the Stoughton Utilities 


Proposed Five-Year (2024 – 2028) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Program, and recommend 


approval of the CIP to the Stoughton Common Council at their October 24, 2023 and November 7, 2023 


meetings.   


 


 


 


 


 







 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    October 12, 2023 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Shannon M. Statz 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager  


Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2024 Operating Budget  


The 2024 electric, water, and wastewater utility budgets have been completed and are presented 


to the committee for review, approval, and recommendation of approval to the Stoughton Common 


Council.   


Budgets were prepared in anticipation that costs will continue to rise. Where it was appropriate, 


we forecasted a 5% increase in material and service costs from 2023 estimated. We used a 3% 


escalator for each year thereafter. Notable cost increases in 2024 include a 6% increase in health 


insurance premiums and an 8% increase in property insurance.  


A market wage adjustment for staff is budgeted in 2024. Approximately 0.9% of total utility 


operating expenses is included in the budget for wage adjustments. Specific percent increases by 


individual position are not yet finalized and will be calculated using the same methodology used 


for the compensation study that was approved by the Stoughton Utilities Committee, Personnel 


Committee and the Common Council in August of 2022.  


The city and utility continue to collaborate on the replacement of infrastructure through the city. 


We have worked closely with the Department of Public Works and the Department of Planning 


and Development to create a replacement schedule that works for the city as a whole. This schedule 


has resulted in the creation of an aggressive water and sanitary sewer main replacement program 


in the coming years, some of which will require debt issuances.  


In addition, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) has developed a program that 


will replace the US Highway 51 / Main Street corridor over the upcoming five years. The 


replacement of water and sanitary sewer main within the scope of this project will also require us 


to issue debt. 


Each utility has projected rate increases within the next five years. Most notable will be consistent 


annual rate increases within the water and wastewater utility budgets.  As we look out over the 


next twenty years, we see that the infrastructure replacement needs of the water and wastewater 


utilities will continue. Forecasted increases in material and construction costs for our main 


replacement program will result in project costs that will far exceed what we are currently 


collecting in our rates.  







Consistent annual rate increases are necessary to raise utility revenues to match the current and 


future financial needs of the utilities. Without the proposed increases projected for the next five 


years, future increases may be at least double what we are proposing now. A comparison of 


surrounding communities’ current and anticipated rates with Stoughton Utilities estimated planned 


rate increases is provided. This comparison will show that Stoughton’s forecasted rates will remain 


competitive even after the projected rate increases. 


Below is a summary of each utility’s expenses, capital projects and revenues for 2024. 


ELECTRIC 


OPERATING EXPENSES 


• Our largest expense is purchased power. There is some good news for this expense as 


WPPI Energy has informed us that we can anticipate a reduction in purchased power costs 


in 2024. 


• Our transmission and distribution expenses are projected to increase 30.1% from 2023. 


This is largely due to planned repairs and maintenance at the substations ($50,000) and an 


increase if overhead line maintenance costs for pole inspections ($20,000). 


• Customer accounting and collection expenses are projected to increase by 4.2%. This is 


due to adjustments reflecting ongoing cost trends for materials and services. 


• Administrative and general expenses are expected to increase 5.5%. This is due to an 


allocation of $30,000 for a facility needs assessment and $30,000 for preparation of a 


construction authorization (CA) application with the Public Service Commission of 


Wisconsin (PSCW). In addition, there are cost increases noted for health insurance and 


property insurance.  


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


• We are budgeting for the replacement of two bucket trucks in 2024 at a cost of $320,000 


each. One of the truck replacements was originally budgeted for 2023, but due to industry 


wide production delays we do not expect taking delivery until 2024. 


• Our largest project planned in 2024 and into 2025 is to add a west tie circuit to support 


increased customer reliability, provide circuit redundancy, and support the utility’s ability 


to handle new load in a growing area of the system. This project has a budgeted cost 


estimate of $900,000 in 2024 and $600,000 in 2025 and will require a CA from the PSCW 


as noted above. 


• There are no planned debt issuances for the electric utility within the next five years. 


OPERATING REVENUES 


• We have forecasted for nominal customer kWh consumption increases in 2024 and 2025 


to reflect known upcoming development projects. We project flat consumption annually 


thereafter, which may change in future annual budgets if new developments are proposed. 


• Our planned rate increase in 2023 is not yet finalized by the PSCW. We designed our 


2024 budget with the assumption that the rate increase will become effective as of 


January 1, 2024. Projected future rate increases include an estimated 2% increase in 2026. 


 


  







WATER 


OPERATING EXPENSES 


• Water treatment expenses are forecasted to increase 16.9% due to increased sampling 


requirements set by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR). 


• Transmission and distribution expenses are expected to rise 7.9% for large meter testing 


($6,000) as well as adjustments reflecting ongoing cost trends for materials and services 


into 2024. 


• Customer accounting and collection expenses are estimated to increase 11.1% due to 


adjustments reflecting ongoing cost trends for materials and services. 


• Administrative and general expenses are anticipated to increase 32.5%. We are currently 


operating with two employee vacancies in the water system division. We are budgeting 


family health insurance coverage for these positions.  In addition, we have two system 


studies (water system model update and a water distribution system study) planned at a 


total cost of $44,000. 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


• Water main replacement projects are planned on West South Street from Van Buren to 


Page, South 4th Street from Main St to the Bridge, South 5th Street from Jefferson to South 


St, East South Street from 4th to 8th, and within Mandt Park. 


• We have provided for engineering costs associated with the WisDOT projects in 2024, 


2025, 2026, and 2027. 


• Our 2024 capital budget accounts for a borrowing of $1,105,000 to fund our water main 


replacement program. We are also forecasting borrowings in 2026 and 2027 for ongoing 


main replacement projects. 


OPERATING REVENUES 


• We have forecasted for flat consumption for 2024 and 2025, despite known upcoming 


development projects, and a 1% decrease for each year thereafter, which may change in 


future annual budgets if new developments are proposed. 


• We designed our 2024 budget to reflect a simplified rate case filing of 8% with the PSCW 


in 2024 and again in 2026, and full rate cases filings in 2025 and 2028, currently 


estimated to be 9% and 8% respectively. 


  







WASTEWATER 


OPERATING EXPENSES 


• Treatment plant expenses are expected to increase 46.1% due to an increase in sludge 


disposal costs ($20,000), parking lot maintenance at the plant ($80,000), and adjustments 


reflecting ongoing cost trends for materials and services. 


• Customer accounting and collection expenses are expected to increase 10.8% to account 


for adjustments reflecting ongoing cost trends for materials and services. 


• Administrative and general expenses are anticipated to rise 28.9%. We have two studies 


planned in 2024 that are budgeted at $55,000 total (a facilities study and a collection 


system study). We are also budgeting for additional insurance costs due to changes in 


anticipated employee coverages. 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


• Sanitary sewer main replacements are planned on South 5th Street from South St to 


Jefferson, West South Street from Page to Van Buren, South 4th Street from Main St to 


the Bridge, East South Street from 4th to 8th, and within Mandt Park. In addition, we have 


budgeted to upgrade the 8th Street Lift Station. 


• We have provided for engineering costs associated with the WisDOT projects in 2024, 


2025, 2026, and 2027. 


• Our 2024 capital budget accounts for a borrowing of $1,156,000 to fund our sanitary 


sewer main replacement program. We are also forecasting borrowings in 2026 and 2027 


for ongoing main replacement and treatment plant maintenance projects. 


OPERATING REVENUES 


• We have forecasted for flat consumption for 2024 and 2025, despite known upcoming 


development projects, and a 1% decrease for each year thereafter, which may change in 


future annual budgets if new developments are proposed.   


• We designed our 2024 budget to reflect annual rate increases of 8% to be in a position to 


fund the capital projects programmed for the next 20 years. 


Stoughton Utilities staff will be presenting the utility’s proposed 2024 budget and five-year CIP 


to the Stoughton Common Council on October 24, 2023 with adoption scheduled on November 7, 


2023.  The committee has previously approved the Five Year (2024 - 2028) Capital Improvement 


Projects (CIP) Program at its September 18, 2023 meeting.   


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve the Stoughton 


Utilities Proposed 2024 Annual Budget, and recommend approval of the budget to the Stoughton 


Common Council at its October 24, 2023 and November 7, 2023 meetings.  



























FOR THE FISCAL YEAR


JANUARY 1, 2024  THROUGH


DECEMBER 31, 2024


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Proposed Annual Budget for the Year


2024







Stoughton Utilities 


2024 Proposed Budget Summary
accounting shared/budget/


Electric Water Wastewater Total


OPERATING REVENUES 16,508,294$      2,765,383$       2,410,249$        21,683,926$      


OPERATING EXPENSES


  Operation & Maintenance Expense 14,365,157$      1,411,692$       1,417,351$        17,194,200$      


  Taxes (PILOT) 442,120$           409,455$          -$                      851,575$           


  Depreciation 1,207,562$        399,173$          959,834$           2,566,569$        


    Total Operating Expenses 16,014,839$      2,220,320$       2,377,185$        20,612,344$      


    OPERATING INCOME 493,455$           545,063$          33,064$             1,071,582$        


    RATE OF RETURN (ROR) 3.05% 4.61% N/A







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 10/13/2023 11:25


OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 


FORECASTED FOR THE YEAR 2024


OPERATING REVENUES Proposed % Change Estimated Actual Actual Actual


  Sales 2024 2024-2023 2023 2022 2021 2020


   Residential 8,722,883$          3.5% 8,427,718$         8,439,374$        8,044,072$       7,655,443$       


   General Service 2,250,391$          2.8% 2,189,471$         2,466,874$        2,138,585$       1,818,926$       


   Small Power  CP1 Customers 1,440,146$          1.0% 1,425,300$         1,490,474$        1,587,267$       1,565,734$       


   Large Power  CP2 Customers 1,314,033$          0.2% 1,311,306$         1,509,864$        1,099,343$       1,018,097$       


   Industrial Power CP3 Customers 2,469,003$          0.6% 2,453,551$         2,352,565$        2,423,129$       2,335,370$       


   Street Lighting 111,838$             10.8% 100,938$            96,333$             91,345$            86,019$            


            Total Sales 16,308,294$        2.5% 15,908,284$       16,355,484$      15,383,741$     14,479,589$     


  Other Operating Revenues


    Forfeited Discounts (Penalties, NSF, Reconnect) 35,000$               9.4% 32,000$              31,997$             33,082$            25,238$            


    Other (Permits, ATC Common Facilities, etc.) 165,000$             -18.1% 201,436$            198,551$           132,238$          132,634$          


             Total Other Operating Revenues 200,000$             -14.3% 233,436$            230,548$           165,320$          157,872$          


                  Total Operating Revenues 16,508,294$        2.3% 16,141,720$       16,586,032$      15,549,061$     14,637,461$     


OPERATING EXPENSES


  Power Production Expenses (WPPI-Wholesale Power) 11,877,730$        -1.8% 12,100,832$       12,254,384$      11,325,693$     10,596,835$     


  Transmission/Distribution 335,584$             30.1% 257,993$            737,256$           769,914$          699,648$          


  Customer Accounting and Collection 175,050$             4.2% 167,920$            350,499$           332,756$          307,580$          


  Administrative and General 712,407$             5.5% 675,444$            739,259$           524,070$          596,405$          


  Taxes 167,158$             4.5% 160,000$            161,671$           161,278$          154,647$          


  Wages 1,097,228$          6.5% 1,030,411$         


  Depreciation 1,207,562$          8.3% 1,115,000$         1,083,084$        1,065,958$       1,050,394$       


  PILOT 442,120$             -5.9% 470,000$            380,252$           438,028$          445,995$          


            Total Operating Expenses 16,014,839$        0.2% 15,977,600$       15,706,405$      14,617,697$     13,851,504$     


                   REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 493,455$             164,120$            879,627$           931,364$          785,957$          


CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,353,500$          56.9% 1,500,000$         1,829,791$        2,492,138$       348,062$          


                    ROR 3.05% 1.06% 5.75% 6.25% 5.16%







2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


OPERATING REVENUES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED BUDGETED ESTIMATED


Sales of electricity 15,383,741$   16,355,484$      15,285,692$   17,409,666$   15,908,284$   16,308,294$   16,608,108$   17,765,423$   17,865,130$   18,006,279$   


Other 165,320         230,548            145,000         150,000         233,436         200,000         200,000         200,000         200,000         200,000         


Total Operating Revenues 15,549,061$   16,586,032$      15,430,692$   17,559,666$   16,141,720$   16,508,294$   16,808,108$   17,965,423$   18,065,130$   18,206,279$   


OPERATING EXPENSES


Purchased power 11,325,693$   12,254,384$      11,279,960$   12,741,716$   12,100,832$   11,877,730$   12,179,821$   12,557,683$   12,648,259$   12,784,605$   


Operation and maintenance 1,626,741      1,798,125         1,893,315      2,097,937      2,131,768      2,320,269      2,358,045      2,510,365      2,449,680      2,524,060      


Taxes 161,278         190,560            161,671         163,158         160,000         167,158         171,260         175,466         179,780         184,205         


Depreciation (Utility Financed) 1,065,958      1,083,084         1,107,319      1,119,655      1,115,000      1,207,562      1,255,431      1,285,257      1,313,168      1,341,244      


PILOT 438,027         380,252            432,368         473,353         470,000         442,120         457,141         464,551         472,887         479,473         


Total Operating Expenses 14,617,697$   15,706,405$      14,874,633$   16,595,819$   15,977,600$   16,014,839$   16,421,697$   16,993,322$   17,063,774$   17,313,586$   


REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME 931,364$       879,627$          556,060$       963,847$       164,120$       493,455$       386,411$       972,100$       1,001,356$    892,693$       


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 14,892,242$   15,288,252$      15,661,648$   17,748,089$   15,508,757$   16,169,041$   16,726,601$   16,550,213$   16,098,137$   15,584,325$   


RATE OF RETURN (Allowed - 6.2%) 6.25% 5.75% 3.55% 5.43% 1.06% 3.05% 2.31% 5.87% 6.22% 5.73%


OPERATING CASH FLOWS 2022 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


Sales of Electricity 15,383,741$   16,355,484$      15,285,692$   17,409,666$   15,908,284$   16,308,294$   16,608,108$   17,765,423$   17,865,130$   18,006,279$   


Routine operating expenditures (12,952,434)   (14,052,509)      (13,173,275)   (14,839,653)   (14,232,600)   (14,197,999)   (14,537,866)   (15,068,048)   (15,097,939)   (15,308,665)   


Transfers and Taxes (607,273)        (628,587)           (599,717)        (543,410)        (633,353)        (637,158)        (613,380)        (632,607)        (644,332)        (657,092)        


Miscellaneous income 165,320         230,548            145,000         150,000         233,436         200,000         200,000         200,000         200,000         200,000         


GASB 68 & GASB 75 Add Back 90,000           90,000           


Total Operating Cash Flows 1,989,354$    1,904,936$       1,657,700$    2,176,603$    1,365,767$    1,763,137$    1,656,863$    2,264,767$    2,322,860$    2,240,523$    


CAPITAL AND FINANCING CASH FLOWS


Acquisition of capital assets (2,492,138)$   (1,829,791)$      (1,274,787)$   (2,835,625)$   (1,500,000)$   (2,353,500)$   (1,486,000)$   (1,068,898)$   (1,004,275)$   (993,200)$      


Principal paid (670,000)        (685,000)           (685,000)        (690,000)        (690,000)        (110,000)        (115,000)        (115,000)        (120,000)        (125,000)        


Interest paid (84,310)          (69,034)             (68,438)          (53,856)          (53,856)          (45,450)          (43,200)          (40,900)          (38,550)          (35,475)          


Debt proceeds -                 -                    -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 


Advance to municipality -                 106,970            55,745           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 


(3,246,448)$   (2,476,855)$      (1,972,480)$   (3,579,481)$   (2,243,856)$   (2,508,950)$   (1,644,200)$   (1,224,798)$   (1,162,825)$   (1,153,675)$   


INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS


Investment income 56,550$         62,436$            8,735$           234,180$       234,180$       294,513$       272,609$       239,734$       271,034$       325,249$       


Net Change in Cash (1,200,544)$   (509,483)$         (306,045)$      (1,168,698)$   (643,909)$      (451,300)$      285,272$       1,279,703$    1,431,068$    1,412,096$    


ENDING CASH BALANCE 6,328,227$    6,945,922$       8,507,193$    7,779,750$    6,302,013$    5,850,713$    6,135,985$    7,415,689$    8,846,757$    10,258,854$   


UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 6,251,767$    5,595,755$       7,488,681$    7,500,136$    5,690,232$    5,232,289$    5,507,585$    6,780,952$    8,201,795$    9,767,175$    


UNRESTRICTED MONTHS ON HAND 4.88               4.34                  5.88               5.17               4.54               4.10               4.23               4.82               5.75               6.75               


(Target is 5 Months O&M and PILOT)


RATE INCREASE NEEDED 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 2.00% 0.00% 0.00%


DEBT ISSUE NEEDED -$               -$                  -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               


DEBT COVERAGE 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED BUDGETED ESTIMATED


Operating revenues 15,545,034$   16,586,032$      15,430,692$   17,559,666$   16,141,720$   16,508,294$   16,808,108$   17,965,423$   18,065,130$   18,206,279$   


Investment Income 56,550$         62,436$            8,735$           234,180$       234,180$       294,513$       272,609$       239,734$       271,034$       325,249$       


O & M expenses (13,163,306)   (14,104,414)      (13,334,946)   (15,002,811)   (14,392,600)   (14,365,157)   (14,709,125)   (15,243,514)   (15,277,719)   (15,492,870)   


Net defined earnings 2,438,278$    2,544,054$       2,104,481$    2,791,035$    1,983,300$    2,437,650$    2,371,592$    2,961,643$    3,058,445$    3,038,658$    


Highest annual debt service 753,438$       743,856$          743,856$       160,475$       160,475$       160,475$       160,475$       160,475$       160,475$       159,800$       


Coverage factor 1.30               1.30                  1.30               1.30               1.30               1.30               1.30               1.30               1.30               1.30               


Minimum required earnings 979,469$       967,013$          967,013$       208,618$       208,618$       208,618$       208,618$       208,618$       208,618$       207,740$       


ACTUAL DEBT COVERAGE 3.24               3.42                  2.83               17.39             12.36             15.19             14.78             18.46             19.06             19.02             


ELECTRIC 2024







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY                      10/13/2023 11:25


OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES


FORECASTED FOR THE YEAR 2024


OPERATING REVENUES Proposed % Change Estimated Actual Actual Actual


  Sales 2024 2024/2023 2023 2022 2021 2020


    Residential 1,360,811$     9.7% 1,240,471$  1,228,408$    1,099,460$     1,086,819$      


    Multi-family Residential 138,020$        8.1% 127,716$     126,996$       119,364$        114,650$         


    Commercial 187,074$        8.1% 173,115$     169,503$       165,033$        161,283$         


    Industrial 307,957$        8.1% 284,854$     263,661$       301,792$        284,054$         


    Public Authority (City Buildings) 20,852$          8.0% 19,299$       18,154$         23,398$           19,641$           


    Private Fire Protection 61,404$          -5.0% 64,607$       62,470$         59,590$           58,097$           


    Public Fire Protection 642,250$        6.7% 602,187$     593,648$       568,978$        555,823$         


        Total Sales 2,718,368$     2,512,249$  2,462,840$    2,337,615$     2,280,367$      


  Other Operating Revenues


    Forfeited Discounts (Penalties, NSF, Reconnect) 7,109$            9.4% 6,500$         6,441$           6,419$             6,151$             


    Other (Joint Metering Allocation, Permits) 39,906$          -1.5% 40,515$       57,335$         40,818$           46,112$           


        Total Other Operating Revenues 47,015$          47,015$       63,776$         47,237$           52,263$           


             Total Operating Revenues 2,765,383$     2,559,264$  2,526,616$    2,384,852$     2,332,630$      


OPERATING EXPENSES


    Source of Supply (Maintenance of Wells) 498$               0.0% -$                 224$              225$                125$                


    Pumping (Well Pumps and Fuel) 181,771$        -12.8% 208,487$     198,505$       130,433$        133,023$         


    Water Treatment (Chemicals) 49,684$          16.9% 42,493$       83,074$         67,945$           82,982$           


    Transmission/Distribution (Mains,Towers,Services,Hydrants) 213,910$        7.9% 198,241$     402,646$       345,408$        315,883$         


    Customer Accounting and Collection 37,725$          11.1% 33,941$       104,522$       103,515$        117,526$         


    Administrative and General 394,439$        32.5% 297,801$     449,626$       390,040$        433,920$         


    Wages 503,433$        35.4% 371,864$     


    Taxes 30,232$          4.1% 29,046$       25,340$         26,374$           25,062$           


    Depreciation 399,173$        5.5% 378,328$     356,490$       362,437$        335,344$         


    PILOT 409,455$        -2.3% 419,291$     376,315$       412,040$        437,266$         


      Total Operating Expenses 2,220,320$     12.2% 1,979,492$  1,996,742$    1,838,417$     1,881,131$      


                   REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 545,063$        579,772$     529,874$       546,435$        451,499$         


CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,870,400$     1136.1% 151,317$     242,497$       1,326,875$     621,403$         


                    ROR 4.61% 5.17% 4.46% 4.81% 3.98%







2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


OPERATING REVENUES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED BUDGETED ESTIMATED


Sales of water 1,705,475$         1,801,442$     1,797,408$         1,864,490$         1,845,455$         2,014,714$         2,196,351$         2,358,673$         2,345,484$         2,518,792$         


Public Fire Protection 568,978              593,648         611,988              593,877              602,187              642,250              701,132              758,671              760,022              822,466              


Private Fire Protection 59,590                62,470           60,267                56,856                64,607                61,404                66,932                72,285                72,285                78,071                


Other 50,809                69,056           45,000                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                


Total Operating Revenues 2,384,852$         2,526,616$     2,514,663$         2,562,238$         2,559,264$         2,765,383$         3,011,430$         3,236,644$         3,224,807$         3,466,344$         


OPERATING EXPENSES


Operation and maintenance 1,037,566$         1,238,597$     1,170,398$         1,220,308$         1,152,826$         1,381,460$         1,322,633$         1,462,433$         1,421,804$         1,472,910$         


Taxes 26,374                25,340           27,009                27,729                29,046                30,232                30,688                31,619                32,585                33,469                


Depreciation (Utility Financed) 362,437              356,490         395,507              379,216              378,328              399,173              426,206              455,255              489,581              518,554              


PILOT 412,040              376,315         429,456              455,221              419,291              409,455              418,404              444,176              459,595              478,143              


Total Operating Expenses 1,838,417$         1,996,742$     2,022,370$         2,082,474$         1,979,490$         2,220,320$         2,197,931$         2,393,484$         2,403,564$         2,503,077$         


REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME 546,435$            529,874$       492,293$            479,764$            579,774$            545,064$            813,499$            843,160$            821,242$            963,267$            


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 11,365,213$       11,873,624$   12,312,033$       11,245,708$       11,214,031$       11,823,635$       12,766,248$       13,606,900$       14,738,283$       15,568,477$       


RATE OF RETURN (Allowed - 6.50%) 4.81% 4.46% 4.00% 4.27% 5.17% 4.61% 6.37% 6.20% 5.57% 6.19%


OPERATING CASH FLOWS 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


Sales of water 2,334,043$         2,457,560$     2,469,663$         2,515,223$         2,512,249$         2,718,368$         2,964,415$         3,189,629$         3,177,792$         3,419,329$         


Routine operating expenditures (1,037,566)          (1,238,597)     (1,170,398)          (1,220,308)          (1,152,826)          (1,381,460)          (1,322,633)          (1,462,433)          (1,421,804)          (1,472,910)          


Transfers and taxes (463,640)             (437,380)        (439,049)             (474,448)             (405,361)             (449,523)             (440,143)             (450,023)             (476,761)             (493,064)             


Miscellaneous income 50,809                69,056           45,000                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                47,015                


GASB 68 & GASB 75 Add Back 50,000                50,000                


Total Operating Cash Flows 883,646$            850,639$       905,217$            867,482$            1,001,078$         934,401$            1,248,654$         1,324,188$         1,326,242$         1,500,370$         


CAPITAL AND FINANCING CASH FLOWS


Acquisition of capital assets (1,326,875)$        (242,497)$      (637,813)$           (257,452)$           (151,317)$           (1,870,400)$        (771,500)$           (2,036,781)$        (1,280,737)$        (1,524,000)$        


Principal paid (486,751)             (480,571)        (520,040)             (573,716)             (573,716)             (401,025)             (456,212)             (412,592)             (329,727)             (339,307)             


Interest paid (79,305)               (80,551)          (88,616)               (94,751)               (94,751)               (96,022)               (97,380)               (98,898)               (102,156)             (94,350)               


Debt proceeds -                      1,659,096      -                      -                      -                      1,105,000           -                      1,000,000           200,000              -                      


Special assessments 29,026                29,026           127,714              32,509                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      


(1,863,905)$        884,503$       (1,211,639)$        (893,410)$           (819,784)$           (1,262,447)$        (1,325,093)$        (1,548,270)$        (1,512,619)$        (1,957,657)$        


INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS


Investment income 6,261$                11,067$         2,442$                67,287$              67,321$              87,664$              84,586$              82,667$              79,041$              71,807$              


Net Change in Cash (730,403)$           1,746,209$     (303,980)$           41,359$              248,615$            (240,382)$           8,147$                (141,416)$           (107,336)$           (385,480)$           


ENDING CASH BALANCE 1,168,809$         2,915,019$     2,301,250$         2,862,242$         3,163,633$         2,923,251$         2,931,398$         2,789,982$         2,682,646$         2,297,166$         


RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 1,168,814$         1,184,183$     852,728$            978,663$            882,696$            917,544$            887,601$            834,931$            839,491$            840,313$            


UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE -$                    1,730,836$     1,448,522$         1,883,579$         2,280,937$         2,005,706$         2,043,797$         1,955,051$         1,843,155$         1,456,853$         


UNRESTRICTED MONTHS ON HAND -                      8.45               7.04                    8.99                    10.90                  8.85                    8.27                    7.36                    6.96                    5.11                    


SRC SRC


RATE INCREASE NEEDED 0.00% 9.00% 9.00% 0.00% 0.00% 8.00% 9.00% 8.00% 0.00% 8.00%


DEBT ISSUE NEEDED -$                    1,659,000$     -$                    -$                    -$                    1,105,000$         -$                    1,000,000$         200,000$            -$                    


DEBT COVERAGE 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


Operating revenues 2,384,825$         2,526,615$     2,514,663$         2,562,238$         2,559,264$         2,765,383$         3,011,430$         3,236,644$         3,224,807$         3,466,344$         


Investment Income 6,261$                11,067$         2,442$                67,287$              67,321$              87,664$              84,586$              82,667$              79,041$              71,807$              


O & M expenses (1,056,916)          (1,224,074)     (1,197,407)          (1,248,037)          (1,181,871)          (1,411,692)          (1,353,321)          (1,494,052)          (1,454,389)          (1,506,379)          


Net defined earnings 1,334,170$         1,313,608$     1,319,698$         1,381,488$         1,444,714$         1,441,356$         1,742,695$         1,825,259$         1,849,459$         2,031,772$         


Annual debt service 509,864$            611,497$       439,039$            558,717$            558,717$            587,085$            550,533$            491,122$            488,806$            482,613$            


Coverage factor 1.30                    1.30               1.30                    1.30                    1.30                    1.30                    1.30                    1.30                    1.30                    1.30                    


Minimum required earnings 662,823$            794,946$       737,848$            726,332$            726,332$            763,211$            715,693$            638,458$            635,447$            627,397$            


ACTUAL DEBT COVERAGE 2.62                    2.15               2.32                    2.47                    2.59                    2.46                    3.17                    3.72                    3.78                    4.21                    


WATER 2024







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 10/13/2023 11:25


FORECASTED FOR THE YEAR 2024


OPERATING REVENUES Proposed % Change Estimated Actual Actual Actual


  Sales 2024 2024/2023 2023 2022 2021 2020


    Residential 1,704,124$         8.00% 1,577,569$    1,503,416$      1,497,393$      1,493,914$      


    Commercial 519,663$            8.00% 481,169$       458,552$         441,996$         412,573$         


    Industrial 121,565$            8.00% 112,560$       107,269$         192,817$         200,540$         


    Public Authority (City Buildings) 28,095$              8.00% 26,014$         24,791$           21,813$           19,821$           


        Total Sales 2,373,446$         2,197,312$    2,094,028$      2,154,019$      2,126,848$      


  Other Operating Revenues


    Forfeited Discounts (Penalties, NSF, Reconnect) 4,611$                15.27% 4,000$           4,068$             4,897$             4,458$             


    Other  (BOD/Suspended Solids Surcharge) 32,192$              -2.96% 33,175$         35,524$           34,974$           69,152$           


             Total Operating Revenues 2,410,249$         2,234,487$    2,133,620$      2,193,890$      2,200,458$      


OPERATING EXPENSES


  Plant (General WWTP Plant Maintenance) 416,733$            46.1% 285,270$       494,654$         560,759$         498,583$         


  Customer Accounting and Collection 53,943$              10.8% 48,685$         166,632$         165,200$         174,322$         


  Administrative and General 432,464$            28.9% 335,422$       545,633$         279,203$         343,028$         


  Wages 480,009$            -2.2% 490,770$       


  Taxes 34,202$              3.0% 33,206$         31,305$           31,300$           30,611$           


  Depreciation 959,834$            3.2% 929,955$       772,166$         774,018$         808,765$         


      Total Operating Expenses 2,377,185$         12.0% 2,123,308$    2,010,390$      1,810,480$      1,855,309$      


                OPERATING INCOME 33,064$              111,179$       123,230$         383,410$         345,149$         


CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,791,127$         258.2% 500,000$       606,896$         249,498$         920,301$         







2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


OPERATING REVENUES ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED BUDGETED ESTIMATED


Treatment charges 2,154,019$   2,094,028$    2,245,016$    2,283,929$    2,197,312$    2,373,446$    2,566,512$   2,754,232$   2,956,708$     3,173,714$   


Other 39,871          39,592          70,700          69,300          37,175           36,803           36,435          36,071          35,710           35,353          


Total Operating Revenues 2,193,890$   2,133,620$    2,315,716$    2,353,229$    2,234,487$    2,410,249$    2,602,948$   2,790,302$   2,992,418$     3,209,067$   


1.26% -2.79% 6.02% 9.07% -2.12% 3.92% 8.13% 7.31% 7.35% 7.34%


OPERATING EXPENSES


Operation and maintenance 1,005,162$   1,206,919$    1,135,579$    1,294,384$    1,160,149$    1,383,149$    1,348,591$   1,392,801$   1,445,201$     1,500,211$   


Taxes 31,300          31,305          31,848          33,206          33,206           34,202           35,228          36,285          37,373           38,494          


Depreciation 774,018        772,166        914,904        929,955        929,955         959,834         994,560        1,030,259     1,078,156       1,115,068     


Total Operating Expenses 1,810,480$   2,010,390$    2,082,331$    2,257,545$    2,123,309$    2,377,185$    2,378,379$   2,459,345$   2,560,731$     2,653,773$   


-5.10% 20.07% 9.59% 7.25% 2.16% 17.23% -2.50% 3.28% 3.76% 3.81%


OPERATING INCOME 383,410$      123,230$      203,012$      95,684$        111,178$       33,065$         224,569$      330,958$      431,687$        555,294$      


OPERATING CASH FLOWS 2021 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


Treatment charges 2,154,019$   2,094,028$    2,245,016$    2,283,929$    2,197,312$    2,373,446$    2,566,512$   2,754,232$   2,956,708$     3,173,714$   


Routine operating expenditures (1,005,162)    (1,206,919)    (1,135,579)    (1,294,384)    (1,160,149)     (1,383,149)     (1,348,591)    (1,392,801)    (1,445,201)     (1,500,211)    


Taxes (31,300)         (31,305)         (31,848)         (33,206)         (33,206)          (34,202)          (35,228)         (36,285)         (37,373)          (38,494)         


Miscellaneous income 39,871          39,592          70,700          69,300          37,175           36,803           36,435          36,071          35,710           35,353          


GASB 68 & GASB 75 Add Back 50,000           50,000           


Total Operating Cash Flows 1,157,428$   895,396$      1,148,289$    1,025,639$    1,091,133$    1,042,898$    1,219,129$   1,361,216$   1,509,844$     1,670,362$   


CAPITAL AND FINANCING CASH FLOWS


Acquisition of capital assets (249,498)$     (606,896)$     (940,000)$     (704,127)$     (500,000)$      (1,791,128)$   (787,400)$     (1,865,225)$  (1,684,125)$    (1,056,200)$  


Principal paid (374,970)       (385,930)       (385,930)       (395,126)       (395,126)        (340,869)        (350,502)       (365,760)       (374,756)        (316,773)       


Interest paid (89,652)         (83,305)         (79,875)         (69,838)         (82,236)          (85,357)          (88,831)         (92,004)         (93,300)          (95,267)         


Debt proceeds -                -                -                -                -                1,156,000      -                1,120,000     970,000          -                


Special assessments 19,905          19,905          23,886          22,294          -                -                -                -                -                 -                


(694,215)$     (1,056,226)$  (1,381,919)$  (1,146,797)$  (977,362)$      (1,061,354)$   (1,226,733)$  (1,202,989)$  (1,182,182)$    (1,468,240)$  


INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS


Investment income (875)$            425,572$      2,501$          53,089$        69,731$         71,688$         77,702$        82,334$        86,994$          96,822$        


Net Change in Cash 462,338$      264,742$      (231,129)$     (68,069)$       183,502$       53,232$         70,098$        240,561$      414,656$        298,943$      


ENDING CASH BALANCE 2,207,932$   2,472,674$    2,291,563$    2,404,605$    2,656,176$    2,709,408$    2,779,506$   3,020,067$   3,434,723$     3,733,666$   


RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 1,285,506$   1,605,577$    1,575,888$    1,499,520$    1,499,520$    1,536,415$    1,559,099$   1,576,746$   1,574,729$     1,586,726$   


UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 922,426$      867,097$      715,675$      905,085$      1,156,655$    1,172,993$    1,220,407$   1,443,321$   1,859,994$     2,146,940$   


UNRESTRICTED MONTHS ON HAND 5.14              4.97              3.83              4.76              6.32               5.93               5.71              6.29              7.55               8.12              


RATE INCREASE NEEDED 0.00% 6.00% 6.00% 0.00% 0.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%


DEBT ISSUE NEEDED -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              1,156,000$    -$              1,120,000$   970,000$        -$              


DEBT COVERAGE 2021 2022 2022 2023 2024 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028


Operating revenues 2,193,890$   2,133,620$    2,315,716$    2,353,229$    2,234,487$    2,410,249$    2,602,948$   2,790,302$   2,992,418$     3,209,067$   


Investment income (875)              425,572        2,501            53,089          69,731           71,688           77,702          82,334          86,994           96,822          


O & M expenses (1,036,462)    (1,238,224)    (1,167,426)    (1,327,590)    (1,193,354)     (1,417,351)     (1,383,819)    (1,429,086)    (1,482,574)     (1,538,706)    


Net defined earnings 1,156,553$   1,320,968$    1,150,791$    1,078,728$    1,110,864$    1,064,587$    1,296,831$   1,443,550$   1,596,837$     1,767,184$   


Highest annual debt service 427,223$      426,984$      426,984$      477,362$      340,869$       426,226$       439,333$      457,764$      468,057$        412,040$      


Coverage factor 1.10              1.10              1.10              1.10              1.10               1.10               1.10              1.10              1.10               1.10              


Minimum required earnings 469,945$      469,682$      469,682$      525,098$      374,956$       468,849$       483,266$      503,540$      514,862$        453,244$      


ACTUAL DEBT COVERAGE 2.71              3.09              2.70              2.26              3.26               2.50               2.95              3.15              3.41               4.29              


WASTEWATER 2024







STOUGHTON WATER RATE COMPARISON


DANE COUNTY


Utility ID Utility Name Rate Schedule County Utility Class
 Montly Charge 


(4000 gal/mo) 
Effective Date


200 Applewood Hill Water Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  50.12 1/5/2019


3340


Village of Maple Bluff Municipal Water 


Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  49.43 3/28/2019 7/25/23 PSC Filing - 22.91% Requested


5450 Village of Shorewood Hills Water Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  46.71 5/30/2023


920 Cambridge Municipal Water Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  40.91 10/1/2022


615


Village of Blue Mounds Municipal Water 


Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  40.33 7/21/2015 3/13/23 PSC Filing - 59% Requested


420 Belleville Municipal Water and Sewer Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  35.92 12/1/2020


3280 Madison Water Utility Mg-1R Dane AB  $                  33.90 3/1/2023


5750 Stoughton Water Utility Mg-1R Dane AB  $                  33.42 1/1/2028


1570 Deerfield Water Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  32.60 9/28/2017


531 Village of Black Earth Water Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  31.72 8/15/2019


3800 Monona Water Utility Mg-1R Dane C  $                  28.97 7/1/2021


3410 Marshall Water And Sewer Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  25.50 7/21/2016


1540 Dane Water and Sewer Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  25.00 12/31/2012


5750 Stoughton Water Utility Mg-1R Dane AB  $                  24.35 3/1/2022


1450 Cross Plains Water Utility Mg-1R Dane C  $                  24.30 2/9/2022


1390 Cottage Grove Water and Sewer Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  24.17 7/1/2019


770 Brooklyn Water Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  24.14 8/1/2021


1760 Edgerton Municipal Water Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  23.34 12/1/2022


3480 Mazomanie Water Utility Mg-1 Dane D  $                  22.90 2/1/2023


6572 Windsor Water Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  21.86 4/21/2023 7/14/23 PSC Filing - 54% Requested


6100 Verona Water Utility Mg-1R Dane AB  $                  20.92 9/16/2019


3950 Mount Horeb Water And Sewer Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  19.90 6/1/2016


6445 Westport Water Utility District Mg-1 Dane D  $                  19.72 8/24/2013


1580 DeForest Municipal Water Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  19.37 1/1/2021


3490 Mcfarland Water and Sewer Utility Mg-1 Dane C  $                  19.04 8/13/2021


5810 Sun Prairie Utilities Mg-1R Dane AB  $                  18.88 12/31/2021


6260 Waunakee Water And Light Commission Mg-1 Dane AB  $                  17.35 12/1/2015


3640 Middleton Municipal Water Utility Mg-1R Dane AB  $                  16.18 3/15/2022


4440 Oregon Municipal Water And Sewer Utility Mg-1 Dane AB  $                  15.43 12/28/2011 3/7/23 PSC Filing - 36% Requested


6570 Windsor Sanitary District Number One Mg-1 Dane C  $                  14.22 5/31/2015


1990 Fitchburg Water Utility Mg-1R Dane AB  $                  14.13 1/1/2021 7/27/23 PSC Filing - 13.58% Requested







Sewer Rate Comparison Oct 2023 


Within 15 Miles of Stoughton


Madison Oregon Fitchburg Stoughton Monona McFarland Edgerton Cottage Grove Evansville Deerfield


01/01/23 12/28/11 01/01/23 7/1/2022 01/01/21 01/01/23 01/01/21 2023 01/01/22 01/01/22


258,366 11,179 30,032 13,146 8,141 8,845 5,613 7,086 5,374 2,553


5/8" 15.23$        6.98$          14.33$           10.30$       17.48$    16.50$           13.99$           17.51$               15.00$      27.50$     


3/4" 15.23$        6.98$          14.33$           10.30$       17.48$    16.50$           13.99$           17.51$               15.00$      27.50$     


1" 30.68$        17.45$        18.77$           15.81$       25.49$    23.95$           19.39$           28.53$               37.50$      61.50$     


1 1/4" -$            24.43$        -$               21.11$       -$         28.89$           23.08$           -$                   52.50$      -$         


1 1/2" 56.43$        24.43$        29.77$           24.97$       39.34$    35.89$           28.61$           47.29$               75.00$      118.00$   


2" 87.33$        34.90$        43.13$           35.98$       54.66$    50.66$           39.69$           70.17$               120.00$    185.50$   


3" 159.43$      55.84$        74.17$           61.64$       99.08$    84.11$           65.68$           122.53$             225.00$    -$         


4" 262.43$      174.50$      117.93$         98.30$       142.76$  132.23$         139.81$         197.91$             375.00$    569.50$   


6" 519.93$      349.00$      228.37$         205.93$     -$         253.23$         195.19$         -$                   750.00$    -$         


2.42$          4.66$          3.15$             5.05$         5.21$       5.50$             7.67$             7.93$                 9.63$        9.50$       


7.20$        


28.69$        32.92$       


38.74$        35.57$       


48.42$        38.41$       


51.33$        41.49$       


54.41$        44.81$       


Notes: Quarterly Bi-Monthly Quarterly Quarterly Adjusted


Adjusted for Adjusted for Adjusted for Adjusted for Volume 


Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly Charge


for 1,000


Gallons


2024 Estimated


2025 Estimated


2026 Estimated


2027 Estimated


2028 Estimated


65.50$     30.50$       44.67$           53.52$      24.93$        38.50$           38.32$    26.93$           


Per 100 Cubic Feet


Average Residential 


Customer Monthly 


Cost (Assuming 4,000 


gallons per month)


49.23$               25.62$        


Per 1,000 Gallons


M
et


e
r 


Si
ze


Community


Effective Date


Population


Volume Charge





		15 R-169 -2023 Utilities Resolution - 2024 Budget

		15a Utilities - 2024 Budget






 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Adoption of 2024 budget and tax levy 
 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Committee of the Whole recommended approval 10-0 on 10/05/2023       


 
Fiscal Impact:   Property tax levy – operations $6,652,361 


Property tax levy – debt service $4,464,043 
Property tax levy – total $11,116,404 
Total expenditures / expenses (excluding Stoughton Utilities) 
$39,523,082 
Mill rate - $6.5137 
Storm Water annual ERU charge - $84.12 
Refuse collection annual charge - $207.36 


 
File Number: 


 
R-171-2023 


 
Date 11/07/23 
044/26/24/02020


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the notice of public hearing on the proposed 2024 City of Stoughton budget 
was published in the Stoughton Courier Hub on October 19, 2023 and a public hearing was held 
on November 07, 2023 in accordance with the provisions of §65.90, Wis. Stats; and, 


 WHEREAS, the proposed expenditures / expenses and revenues for 2024 are shown in the 
City of Stoughton 2024 budget book dated November 1, 2023, available for review in the office 
of the Director of Finance/Comptroller’s office, and incorporated herein by reference; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Ad Hoc Capital Improvement Plan Committee met on August 8, 2023, 
August 17, 2023 and August 23, 2023 to review the mayor’s proposed budget; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole met on September 27, 2023 and October 5, 2023 
to review the Mayor’s proposed budget; and, 


 WHEREAS, the proposed 2024 City of Stoughton expenditures budget, excluding 
Stoughton Utilities, is summarized as follows: 







 


 


Wages 8,305,241$      General Government 3,600,519$      


Benefits 3,151,573        Public Safety 5,807,928        


Operating Expenditures / Expenses 6,850,957        Public Works 7,997,996        


Depreciation 340,000           Health & Human Services 1,220,937        


Debt Service - Principal 4,984,876        Culture, Recreation, Education 10,449,222      


Debt Service - Interest & Fiscal Charges 1,321,012        Conservation & Development 2,421,079        


Capital Outlay 13,197,849      Debt Service 6,201,638        


Transfers Out 1,371,574        Storm Sewer 918,417           


Emergency Medical Services 905,346           


Total expenditures / expenses 39,523,082$   Total expenditures / expenses 39,523,082$   ; and,


 WHEREAS, the proposed 2024 City of Stoughton revenues budget, excluding Stoughton 
Utilities, is summarized as follows: 


Property tax - operations 6,652,361$      Misc Revenue - Investment income 1,087,050         


Property tax - debt service 4,464,043        Misc Revenue - Donations 474,294            


Other taxes 1,715,053        Misc Revenue - Rental income 217,356            


Intergovernmental revenues 5,009,737        Misc Revenue - Other 49,500              


PILOT agreements 808,788           Debt proceeds 11,868,059      


Licenses & permits 338,200           Transfers in 1,371,574         


Fines, forfeitures, and penalties 115,750           Fund balance applied 278,753            


Charges for services - public 4,955,381        Net position applied / capital contributions (616,089)           


Charges for services - other govts 633,932           Total revenues 39,523,082$    ; and,


Charges for services - depts 99,340              


 WHEREAS, the proposed budget commits the following amounts of fund balance in the 
General Fund in order to adhere to both the Expenditure Restraint Program expenditure limits and 
the statutory levy limits in Wis. Stat. Chapter 66: 


Retirement payouts as per R-175-2022 85,000$    


Expenditure Restraint Program 39,000$    


Levy limit constraints 32,291$    


DEI Taskforce carryfoward from 2023 5,000$      


Total committed fund balance 161,291$ ; and,  


WHEREAS, the City’s equalized value excluding Tax Increment Districts (TIDs) is 
$1,706,623,300 which is a 13.82% increase over the prior year; and, 


WHEREAS, the proposed property tax mill rate is $6.5137 which is a decrease of $0.4964 
or 7.08% from the prior year; and, 


WHEREAS, the proposed budget for Storm Water Equivalent Runoff Units (ERUs) is 
$84.12 per year which is an increase of $3.06 or 3.9%; and, 


WHEREAS, the proposed budget for refuse collection fees is $207.36 which is an increase 
of $7.09 or 3.5%; 







 


 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton that the 2024 budget appropriations in the sums and for purposes herein set forth be the 
same are hereby approved; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the sums of levied for the ensuing year are: 


Property tax - operations 6,652,361$    


Property tax - debt 4,464,043      


Total 11,116,404$ ; and,


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution, including the City of 
Stoughton 2024 budget book and any amended version, shall be made available for public 
inspection in the office of the City of Stoughton City Clerk, upon adoption, as provided by law; 
and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton Director of 
Finance/Comptroller is authorized to make any technical corrections to the budget that are 
necessary and shall provide information on these technical corrections to the City of Stoughton 
Finance Committee. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       





